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BUSINESS MODEL

Service alignment, Business
modularisation, Modules
specialisation
and Management digitalisation

SINESS MOTTO
SSING CUSTOMERS'

tion and Creating Values
ith Quality Services

BRI mEEE
FRFESAMRAL  EFEEIRE S &
IR R BEHRL B R

OPERATION IS THE KEY
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Leading Property
Management Enterprise in the
Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
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COMPANY PROFILE
NEGIT

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd. (1922.HK) is a leading property
management service provider in Nanjing and the Jiangsu Province
in the PRC. The Group ranked 17th and 2nd among China's Top
100 Property Management Companies and the Jiangsu Province's
Top 50 Property Management Companies in 2022, respectively,
and ranking the Tst in the Nanjing Property Management
Industry Credit Handbook Directory in three consecutive years.

The Group was established in 1997. Throughout the past 25 years of
development, the Group has always adhered to its business motto of
"operation is the key, reputation comes first” for its business operation.
Leveraging on the high quality services and sound management
system the Group possesses and the “Living+" and "Industry+" service
model it adopts, the Group has integrated resources to provide owners
and customers with professional, diversified and caring property
management services. Not only could this fulfil the owners' pursuit of a
better life, but there would also be an increase in the value of the owners'
immovable assets, as well as building strong support for non-residential
customers such that they could focus on their respective core business.

The Group mainly provides diversified property management
services and value-added services. The Group's business covers
a wide spectrum of properties, including residential properties
and non-residential properties covering government facilities,
financial institutions, property sales offices, medical institutions,
commercial complex, parks, transportation facilities, industrial parks,
mixed-use properties, education institutions and office buildings.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's business covers 22 cities in the
PRC, of which 18 cities are in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis
with its contracted GFA and GFA under management reaching
approximately 68.5 million sq.m. and 65.3 million sq.m., respectively.
The Group managed 974 properties, including 600 residential
properties and 374 non-residential properties, and served over 560,000
households covering over 1.8 million people as at 31 December 2022.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

LI Chunling
HUANG Xuemei

Non-executive Directors
XIE Chenguang (Chairman)
HUANG Qingping

MA Baohua

ZHU Li

Independent non-executive Directors

CHOW Siu Hang
LI Yougen
MAO Ning

AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHOW Siu Hang (Chairman)
MAO Ning
XIE Chenguang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

MAO Ning (Chairman)
XIE Chenguang
LI Yougen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

XIE Chenguang (Chairman)
MAO Ning
LI Yougen

REGISTERED OFFICE

Sertus Chambers, Governors Square
Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue
P.0. Box 2547

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN THE PRC

5" Floor, Block AYincheng Plaza
289 Jiangdong Avenue North
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite F, 14/F

Neich Tower

128 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

(with effect from 26 November 2022)
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HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F.

148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

(with effect from 7 November 2022)

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

P. C. Woo & Co.

12" Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY

TSANG Qi Yin (appointed with effect from 26 November 2022)
YIM Lok Kwan (resigned with effect from 26 November 2022)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

HUANG Xuemei
TSANG Qi Yin (appointed with effect from 26 November 2022)
YIM Lok Kwan (resigned with effect from 26 November 2022)

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrialand Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Chengxi Branch

COMPANY'S INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Tel: (852) 3107 0066

Fax: (852) 3107 0898

Email: ir@yincheng.hk
COMPANY'S WEBSITE

www.yinchenglife.hk

LISTING INFORMATION
Equity Securities

The Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1922).

Financial Calendar
Annual results announcement: Tuesday, 28 March 2023

Annual General Meeting: Thursday, 1 June 2023
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
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Performance Maintained at A Stable Growth

FERFREER

Revenue Gross profit Profit for the year

E7 FRiEF

1 7112.9: 259.4%;;;% 112.6@;;;;
12684 118.3% i '18.84

2018-2022 CAGR 38.3% 2018-2022 CAGR 39.8% 2018-2022 CAGR 40.6%

2018F 2022 SIS RE38.3% 2018F2022FE B IS RIE39.8% 2018F 2022 S E I RIE40.6%
Gross profit margin Profit margin Basic earnings per share
EFE Ff= SREARZEF

15.1%  6.6% 0.40-

The Two Main Businesses Have Grown Sustainably

MAEEXZHIFEER

Property
19.9% management Residential
services 52.2% properties
W EER 3 EEME
roperty
Total Revenue 1 ,3 68 . 6 masnagfamsent 654 . 2
Value-added “EBA Million BT SOvicE Million B # 7
servicss PO MR EIERT E
18 (AR 1 7 1 2 9 26.5% Non-residential
I [ properties 1 3 6 8 6
340 3 Million BT FEEMH ™~ -
. Million BB 7T
Million B# 7T 7 1 4 4
79.9% " 47.8%
- 26.6% Million BETT

The revenue contribution from non-residential properties, for the first time,
exceeded that from residential properties.

FEEMENRZEMERBBEEE-

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS
Fiaserh

Continue with the Advantages on its Scale;
Organic Growth in GFA under Management

IEEREEY TEEREANER

Million sq.m. Contracted GFA CAGR 4
AR swpnmmgasngs | S24%

68.5
1.9
GFA under Management CAGR GFA under management 11.1 0/
EEREEE -1770
65.3 Contracted GFA o
58.8 SHEEERE 107 /0

+
repnEmsasnss | 433%
External expansion quickly

42.8

30.8
223
26.1
15.5
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 converted contracted GFA to

GFA under management
LUMREE AT AR AT ERRER

B GFAunder Management [l Contracted GFA
HEREERE SHRERRA

The Number of Managed Projects Continues to Increase

EREEREREEH

Managed properties Increased by
£ = 600:  374:
18l 18
Unit Residential Properties Non-residential Properties
o,
@ . Yo EEEE JHEEEE

Operating Indicators were Maintained at a High Industry Level
RIS TR KE

Residential Property Non-residential Property
management fee collection rate Pre-collection rate Management fee collection rate
EEMESEE = SEIES JEEEMESEERME

909 Loy, 959,

Comprehensive management fee

clearance rate Customer Satisfaction rate Renewal rate
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0 920¢ 95¢
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY
R CYSE S

TABLE 1: COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE

"E— RERK

For the year ended 31 December (audited)

HZE12831ALEE (EBER)

RMB'000 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARBTT 20226 20215 2020 20194 20185
Revenue WA 1,712,934 1,351,329 962,017 695,765 467,666
Growth rate WRX 26.8% 40.5% 38.3% 48.8% 52.9%
Gross profit £ 259,354 219,246 162,385 111,882 67,928
Growth rate BRE 18.3% 35.0% 45.1% 64.7% 32.9%
Profit for the period/year R,/ E R 112,603 94,798 70,215 33,227 27,090
Growth rate BRE 18.8% 35.0% 111.3% 22.7% 36.7%
Profit attributable to the parent SYNGIE 2Nyl 106,734 88,694 67,286 33,121 27,331
Growth rate WRX 20.3% 31.8% 103.2% 21.2% 32.7%
Gross profit margin ERE 15.1% 16.2% 16.9% 16.1% 14.5%
Net profit margin P P 6.6% 7.0% 7.3% 4.8% 5.8%
Core net profit* AR 113,573 97,798 N/ATRE 45,700 N/ARE
Core net profit margin* TR 6.6% 7.2%  N/AREBA 6.6%  N/ARBA
EBITDA SRITERHERAE 189,320 163,326 122,647 65,764 50,561
Earings per share (RMB) SRR ARE) 0.40 0.33 0.25 016 N/ARER
* Before deduction of listing expenses or management fee arising from share incentives
* AR LR SR E BN EEER
EBITDA= Earnings before tax + financial expenses + depreciation and amortisation
BRI E AR = IR0 F R+ 75 B A+ 3 5 L8N
TABLE 2: RESULTS BY SEGMENTS
i DBEE

For the year ended 31 December (audited)

HE12B31ALEE (TB)

RMB'000 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
AREBFT 20215 20205 20194 20185
Revenue from property management services 1 BIZIRFURA 1,368,638 1,082,123 771,917 553,091 367,641
Growth rate ER¥ 26.5% 40.2% 39.6% 50.4% 58.0%
Revenue from value-added services IBERBWA 340,328 268,760 189,830 142,674 100,025
Growth rate BERE 26.6% 41.6% 33.1% 42.6% 36.7%
Gross profit from property management services )% S EREER 128,678 107,797 82,056 54,175 28,460
Gross profit margin ER= 9.6% 10.0% 10.6% 9.8% 7.7%
Gross profit from value-added service EERBER 126,708 111,003 80,059 57,707 39,468
Gross profit margin EH=E 37.2% 41.3% 42.2% 40.4% 39.5%

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2022



TABLE 3: SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET
xE=  BEERRREE

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY
MBREHEE

For the year ended 31 December (audited)
BENANBLEE (BER)

RMB'000 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARET T 20226 20215 20206 20196 20185
Trade receivables BH A 342,083 231,037 127,836 70,761 55,530
Total current assets TEEEGE 1,024,671 954,128 861,873 637,052 317,955
Total assets BEBE 1,246,769 1,135,361 981,052 694,711 387,236
Contract liabilities aNEE 338,194 295,835 233,982 193,489 115,869
Trade and other payables, B o REMERTIE

deposits received and accruals BlhzeRETER 363,387 291,516 218,864 276,521 119,675
Interest-bearing bank and HERTK

other borrowings HAhfEm 118,546 209,000 280,000 50,000 30,000
Total liabilities BERE 879,793 862,425 785,481 572,909 314,047
Net assets BEFE 364,976 272,936 195,571 121,802 73,169
Financial ratios g duE
Return on equity(ROE) R 3R 35.3% 40.5% 44.2% 34.1% 43.2%
Excluding the impact of listing expenses Vi ¥l 4 46.9%
Current ratio BN 1.2x 1.1x 1.1x 1.1x 1.1x
Average turnover days of trade receivables Z 3 EWFIBTIIBERHU 61.1 485 377 33.1 335
Average turnover days of trade payables B S EFIEFHEERH 15.1 11 7.9 6.4 85
Interest coverage ratio FEBELE 25.9 13.9x 11.4x 20.9x 22.1x
TABLE 4: SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RN REVEREE

For the year ended 31 December (audited)
BHE1ANALEE BER)

RMB'000 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ARETT 2022F 2001 2020 20195 2018
Net cash generated from R EBMEREMPE

operating activities 38,562 120,358 68,000 105,781 35,714
Net cash (used)/generated from REEE i)/

investing activities Fi8RE RS (173,722) (59,315)  (3,000,960) 71,318 (104,509)
Net cash (used)/generated from RMEEE (i) /

financing activities FIERE N2 (110,913) (89,827) 352,056 149,352 (12,369)
Net (decrease)/increase ReERREEEY (L) /

in cash and cash equivalents 1B% 5 (246,073) (28,784) 119,096 326,451 (81,164)
Cash and cash equivalents FRRERFEEEY

atend of year 292,058 538,131 566,915 447819 121,368

IR ERIE A IR A
02FERE



FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY
MBREHEE

TABLE 5: BREAKDOWN OF PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES
REE Y EERTEHM

For the year ended 31 December (audited)

HENANBLEE (BER)
2022 2021
20226F 2021
GFA under GFA under
management management
RMB'000 5q.m.'000 RMB'000 % sq.m.'000 %
e ity
BEEE BE@E
ARBF5 FEHK ARBFT FEBK
By property types RYEELE S
Residential properties FENE 654,209 41.8% 50,770 11.7% 561,395 51.9% 46,406 79.0%
Non-residential properties FEETME 114,429 52.2% 14,558 22.3% 520,728 48.1% 12,355 21.0%
By geographic region HHEEEE 2
Nanjing BR 988,590 12.2% 39,612 60.6% 822,914 76.0% 34,969 59.5%
Districts outside Nanjing ERMIMEE 380,048 21.8% 25,7116 39.4% 259,209 24.0% 23,192 40.5%
By project sources RIEEREE S
Fromindependent third parties REBILE=7 1,249,798 91.3% 58,992 90.3% 974,472 90.1% 52,759 89.8%
From Yincheng Group RERWER 118,840 8.7% 6,336 9.7% 107,651 9.9% 6,002 10.2%
TABLE 6: SUMMARY OF BUSINESS DATA
RN EBEERHEE
As at 31 December
128318
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20214 20205 20195 20184
Contracted GFA ('000sq.m) BHRERRE (TFAK 68,533 61,944 42,768 30,761 22,296
Growth rate BRX 10.6% 44.8% 39.0% 38.0% 59.1%
GFA under management HEREEB (FTEAR)

('000 sq.m) 65,328 58,761 39,144 26,077 15,463
Growth rate BRE 11.2% 50.1% 50.1% 68.6% 43.6%
Number of managed properties AEREHE 974 837 369 239 162
Growth rate ER¥ 16.4% 126.8% 54.4% 47.5% 58.8%
Customer satisfaction rate” RRREE" 90% 88% 86% 84% 88%
Renewal rate Bu=x 95.0% 93.0% 94.1% 90.4% 100.0%
Collection rate of residential properties FEVERGE 90.0% 91.0% 91.3% 91.1% 89.4%
Pre-collection rate of residential properties* (¥ =+ 461% 41.1% 39.2% 38.1% 35.4%
Collection rate of non-residential properties JE{EEHZEREFE 95.0% 93.0% 93.0% 95.0% 93.5%

AW EE
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Mana ement feeé e-collected this year/ management fee receivable for the year after
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Accordlng to Beijing Saiwei Consulting CO., Ltd.



AWARDS

=
=%
# B_®,

2efs [0 g ok MR 36 1

_ %
‘f A o L8

22 [ e R 9 1

({5

IR Awards

CERTIFICATE
of Excellence

e e s

Vincheng Life Serviop 00, Lid
ST HEY

g 2y | Bre——
The HKIRA Bth Isvestor Relatusts Awurdi

o "

1

202145 [
ABFIH2ERAR

AR EER R S ST
—CZ=4—R

T AL

HATWLEREEAA

TR R R
ZOo=—&+=R

A E

HETH2ERERAN

T LR R

—o=—#+=H
- i

The 17th among the China Top 100 Property 5. Investor Relations Awards - Certificate of Excellence
Management Companies in 2022 KREEMARAREBER
2022 B AR R EEH 1711

6. The 1st among the credit ranking of Nanjing Property
Huiren HengAn, a subsidiary of the company, ranked Management Industry in 2022
95th among the China Top 100 Property Management ZOZZEEF_FTEFE%*%% BT ERBIRE—
Companiesin 2022
HETFECIEZYEAE2022FEYERFFEREE 7. 34 projects under management were assessed as
25951 provincial demonstration property management

projects

2022 China Leading Property Management Companies JMETEBIEE BT ARR RS EEIRIER
in terms of Marketisation of Business
2022 EY X EIBTEHIBLEZEELE 8. 54 projects under management were assessed as

The 2nd among the 2027 Top 50 Property
Management Industry in Integrated Strength in

Jiangsu Province
201 FEIBHRENERBITEEEGE PR 058 E

EBEBEEUU

municiple demonstration property management
projects
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JANUARY

The annual management review meeting of the
Group was held to summarise the 2021 year
of "eliminating virtual reality and returning to
rationality”. At the meeting, the management
put forward the key words of 2022: property
service area encryption, attitude first, and quality
adherence; Professional services should build
leading professional capabilities and operational
capabilities; Life services should accelerate the
development of city-level living services and
continue to innovate product lines.
BHAEEFEEETIEG BEIEERE O
SRIEME ) 192021 o g £ BIEEIR H20225 AR
& %%HE%’IEEDZHD*“@EF“?EH %EF‘:’TT,
¥R BT AN B R A NAIE A ; £ERR
BEMRATRE S RESE BEaE RS-

MARCH

The Group released its 2021 annual results, with
revenue growth of over 40%, net profit growth of
35% and GFA under management increasing by 50%,
of which GFA under management from third parties
further increased to 89.8%. Held presentation
conference to report the results and future
prospects to shareholders, investors and the media
2021 2L IRz a8 R PUAK 2 ,aa%lJ,F'ﬂi"
£35% fEEEAIEM50% HRREE=F1EE
EEE—TIRAEE9.8% AHEMEMBKRET &
BEAN REEREEERNRAKEE

\"4?} ’}"“::::m“ =
1 2021

PEEMAEHT

ANMUAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT %

Won the bid for the project of Liutang Service Area
in Lianyungang, Jiangsu Province, and entered the
city for the first time, further expanding the business
layout

PIRIGREERBRERTERE  BREAZK
M EZHMEBEX

APRIL
4H

o The 2022 China Top 100 Property Management
Companies Research Results Conference and
the 15th China Top 100 Property Management
Entrepreneurs Summit were held in Beijing. The
Group and Huiren HengAn, a property management
expert of hospitals, were both awarded as two of the
top 100 enterprises
02 EERFZAREXEMANREMSES
THETFENERBAEAEERESEILRES
BT AEERETERYERGERECERZSE
LETHR

. Second tranche of 1.6 million share options granted
to 20 employees
RES _HEBRESS10BRT20RET

. Publication of 2021 Annual Report and
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

L2021 FFHRLIRIE - HERERRS
MAY
5H

o The signing ceremony for the cooperation with
Jiangsu Ermu Cultural Tourism Development
Group was held in Jinling Hotel, Nanjing. In future
cooperation, both parties will work together to
create a new model of smart and professional
"property + cultural tourism” to meet the diversified
needs of customers.
ETHMAEXEREERERGFROBINER
REERIEEERT ERRNSIER  EFRHE
B BARITEB 216~ BEAER M E+30k
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JUNE
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. Successfully convened the 2022 AGM
PN ABR02KRRBFERE

. Established Nanjing Big Zebra Smart Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. to carry out EV charging city

services business

I BRAMESSERBRERAR HRE

BB MR XS

MILESTONES
P

JUNE

6H

Leaders of the Social Development Division of
Nanjing Municipal Development and Reform
Commission conducted an in-depth investigation
of the Company's "property + pension” pilot
community and fully recognised its operation model
MRMENSHEEREEE—TRARBAELF
ME+EE IHNNE RO THEERI




MILESTONES

RE:L

AUGUST
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Announced the 2022 interim results, with revenue
increased by 37.5%, net profit increased by 24.8%,
and newly developed projects from third parties
accounted for more than 99%. Held a press
conference to report the results of the first half of the
year and the outlook for the second half of the year to
shareholders and investors

2022 HRZEAR - W tE R37.5% 0 B FHE &
24.8% > FIHRIEE R B E = H G EHE99% - AR
FRAREREEANER X FXEBERRTEE

RE

OCTOBER
102

Joining hands with Jiangsu Youth Development
Foundation to set up the "Yincheng Life Charity
Fund"” to give full play to the advantages of property
services, focus on youth public welfare projects
among service groups, provide charity public
welfare services to the society, and building up
corporate public welfare image

BF ISV FUERESERIUBHEREE
B HBYERBED SRERGEHETRE
BLFERmER MU ERMESAERT  #iir
EERATER

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

NOVEMBER-DECEMBER
11A-128

With the theme of "gathering love and kindness”,
we carried out a series of welfare activities for
property owners and launched the "Thousand
Talents Education Programme” to celebrate the third
anniversary of the Company's listing and the 25th
anniversary of the Company's establishment with
meaningful practical actions
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESES

In 2022, based on the principle of “tapping into businesses
with substance and returning to rationalisation”, the
Group shifted from GFA-oriented to revenue-oriented,
from quantity-oriented to quality-oriented and from
growth rate-oriented to input-output ratio-oriented,
and attached importance to the healthy cash flow while
focusing on profit.

2022F  AEBUTEERE - EFEEI AR #E
BERnELZERER RBE=EnNEA2E=8mR ®
MEXEMEAKAENLEER  ERAEFHFE
SEREERNER-

XIE Chenguang 3 = ¢
Chairman Z/&

“Remaining tenacious though struck and beats without rest, regardless
of the wind from north or south, east or west". In 2022, China's property
management industry continued to face great changes. Affected by the
in-depth adjustment of the real estate industry since 2021, more and
more property management enterprises have realised that they have
entered the existing market competition, and the new order is being
reconstructed, and the property management industry has entered a
new development cycle. Under the multiple impacts of macro-economic
downturn, recurrent outbreaks of the pandemic, volatile capital market
and increasingly fierce competition in the industry, the Group, despite
facing huge difficulties in 2022, still delivered a relatively satisfactory
performance with the active efforts of the management and all staff,
which was a strenuous achievement.

As regards the property management industry per se, we are well aware
that it is a high-quality and promising industry with both social value and
economic value. After more than 40 years' development, China's property
management industry has just gone through the first spring season in
the past few years and gradually emerged in the society with a mature
attitude. The property management industry is not only included in the
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14th Five-Year Plan Outline by the State Council, but also emphasised
as an important industry for people's livelihood. Whether it is the
Notice on Issuing the Guidelines for the Construction of Full Residential
Communities issued by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development in January 2022, or the Opinions on Further Promoting
the Construction of Smart Communities issued by nine departments
including the Ministry of Civil Affairs in May, or the Two Sessions held in
early 2023, all show that property management is not only limited to the
management of traditional residential or non-residential communities;
Its extension is very broad, including community elderly care, childcare,
renovation of old-urban communities, and even city services and city
housekeeper services performed outside the community are all included
in the scope of property management in the new era. The market size
of the property management industry is becoming more and more
enormous. However, are there enough excellent property management
enterprises to assume the responsibility for people’s livelihood? Is there
a sufficient number of experienced property management enterprises
capable of providing services with strong operational capabilities?
Yincheng Life Service, as one of such enterprises, has undergone 25
years of development and operation. In particular, we were the first one
of such enterprises to become market-oriented a decade ago, and we
have accumulated extensive service capabilities, operation capabilities
and expansion capabilities. We believed that we can continue to seize
opportunities in the new order of property management and move
forward steadily.

In 2022, based on the principle of “"tapping into businesses with
substance and returning to rationalisation”, the Group shifted from GFA-
oriented to revenue-oriented, from quantity-oriented to quality-oriented
and from growth rate-oriented to input-output ratio-oriented, and
attached importance to the healthy cash flow while focusing on profit.
Under this principle, the Group has adjusted its internal organisational
structure to make the functions of each business segment clearer, and
improved the level of digitalisation and intelligence, so as to maximise the
synergy and cooperation functions of various functional departments. At
the same time, the Group furtherimplemented the regional concentration
strategy, adhered to Nanjing as the regional core, increased project
layout, improved satisfaction and reputation, and consolidated its
leading position in the Nanjing market; at the same time, we developed
our business in the Yangtze River Delta area, gradually penetrated into
Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui as well as other provinces and municipalities.

In 2023, with the easing of the pandemic, we once again saw the smile
of property owners. Our services shall be people-oriented, and face-
to-face unreserved communication is particularly important to us. The
energy accumulated in the winter is expected to blossom in the spring.
Looking forward to the future, the road ahead would not be smooth, but
as long as we could identify ourselves and believe in ourselves, and not
be afraid of and actively respond to the difficulties we encountered, we
will surely be able to move forward. Yincheng Life Service is committed
to becoming an enterprise that is trusted by the clients, confided to by the
clients, growing together with and respected by the clients.

Chairman
XIE Chenguang
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PRESIDENT'S STATEMENT

The Group has adhered to the road of marketisation for
many years. The process is difficult, but the direction
is correct. Now that we have reached a critical period,
whether we can use our accumulated experience to hold
on steadily to our advantages and follow the trend, this
would become an examination of our determination and
adaptability.

FEESFREFEDIZCER BREESRBN 8
HRZERN - BAIEE 7T RAEEH > 5E S AR
RENER BRTEZLIEZMA  EEREMANE
kil -4k

LI Chunling =&
President #8%

Dear Board of Directors and Shareholders,

On behalf of the management, | am pleased to present the financial and
business report of Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd. for the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 (the "Period under Review") and share the
outlook for the coming year with you.

As predicted by the Group several years ago, China's property
management industry will definitely shift from the incremental era to
the inventory era, and 2022 would be the year of transition. As a result
of the Group's forward-looking strategic deployment, the Group has
actively acquired market projects in recent years with the positioning
of "second-hand property operation expert”, resulting in over 90% of
the Group's GFA under management having obtained from independent
third-party developers. This has enabled us to maintain a steady organic
growth in 2022 amid the uncertain economic and social environment
and the turbulent real estate industry. During the Period under Review,
the Group's revenue and profitability basically reached the target set
at the beginning of the year, so as to fulfil the Group's long-term value
commitment with good results.
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In response to the changes in the market and in combination with the
Group's own positioning and development stages, we have made several
strategic adjustments in 2022.

Continuous expansion of scale
From focusing on GFA to focusing on revenue

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's contracted GFA was approximately
68.5 million sq.m., representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
10.7%; GFA under management was approximately 65.3 million sg.m.,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 11.1%; total
number of projects under management was 974, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 16.4%. Although the business scale
of the Group is still expanding, we have slowed down the pace to review
the meaning and efficiency of each square metre. We adjusted our focus
from the increase in GFA to the growth of revenue. During the Period
under Review, the Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB1,712.9
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 26.8%.
Among which, revenue from property management services amounted
to approximately RMB1,368.6 million, and revenue from value-added
services amounted to approximately RMB340.3 million, accounting for
approximately 79.9% and approximately 19.9% of the total revenue,
respectively.

The business model of “Service Alignment, Business modularisation,
Modules specialisation and Management digitalisation” can help the
Group to achieve efficient cost management, but as the minimum wage
level and social security contribution base in Jiangsu Province were
adjusted several times in the second half of 2021 and in the first half
of 2022, with cumulative increases of 13% and 26% respectively, and
the number of employees increased with the expansion of the Group's
business (by 32% in 2022), the Group's operating costs increased
considerably during the Year under Review. Therefore, the Group took the
advantage of our close project distribution to achieve resource sharing,
and by taking the Group's cost-saving measures such as improving
the level of digitisation and reducing non-essential expenses, and by
withdrawing from low profit generating projects, the Group's gross
profit and net profit were maintained at a reasonable level. During the
Period under Review, the Group's net profit was approximately RMB112.6
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 18.8%.
Gross profit margin and net profit margin were approximately 15.1% and
6.6% respectively.

During the Period under Review, earnings per share of the Group was
RMBO.4, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 21.2%.
Return on net assets was approximately 35.3%.

PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
ERS

HETSENEE S EBBFHEMKR
BRISE > FMTE20228 17 7 — L3RR M
BUEHEE

HRIRFEBIEX

REEmBRIREEE R

20221283 1H AEB SN HEEL68.5
BEFYXK BHLIEBEN10.7%;, TEEREL
65 3BT K BLLIEELNI.1%; BESE
Bo741E > BB EN16.4% REXNEBRDN
EBEBNEFEEA BRAMIETHMS
UERE—FRNESNNE - BMNEE
EREIE IR A BRI T E NG R - OB
R AEBRBREERAHARERE,712.9
BET AR ELN26.8% A kEYE
EERFBHOBALN B ANRKE,368.6BE T
MmAEBEREREHNBANE AREE34035
Bt DA L AR IR A BYT9.9%5219.9% ©

BETRBEKZC EHERC - HEIBEE
E- BB TCINEEEAETIRNAEER
ERNERNORAER  AMBNIHERE
TEKFEMEREHL BN 2021FE T 5
F22022F FHFFHRAE ) RHIBED B
13%F026% > M HE & A & B £ B IE R ML
METHE (2022F1%81832%) » KEEK
EERAELBEBER EAR DAL KE
EFBARENEESMUEREREZ I
BRREABBEKFE - BHIEXNERLTEEH
MAN O UREHERFER  FEAEER
BIEMF AR KT T ESIESEE [ E
W REBAMNNABAREI2.68ET H
B R 4918.8% c EF X RAF X DRI AL
15.1%R26.6% °

ClEMN AEESKREMNAARB0.4
70 BB RA21.2% - FEELDRETOS
35.3%¢

R SERRISAMRAR
2022FEERE



PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
HERS

Operation capability improvement
From quantity concern to quality concern

Operation is the Key, Reputation Comes First GB& A& » I ZE £). We
are well aware that the operation of every project under management
has been recognised and recommended by the owners, which is the
foundation for the Group to achieve its two-pronged development
strategy of "keep existing clients" and “gain new clients". During
the Period under Review, the renewal rate of the Group's existing
customers remained at a high level of around 95%, and the overall
customer satisfaction rate was approximately 90%. The collection rate
of residential property customers for the year was approximately 90%,
while the prepayment rate (i.e. the management fee for next year is paid
in advance in the current year) was even as high as approximately 44.1%.
These key operational indicators show that the Group has gained a high
degree of trust from existing customers which are willing to maintain a
long-term partnership with us.

Although due to the impact of the pandemic, the number of bidding
projects in the market decreased significantly, coupled with irrational
competition in the industry, resulting in the Group having to voluntarily
give up some opportunities for external expansion, yet, the Group still
added a net of 137 high-quality new projects. From focusing on the
growth of the number of projects, we returned to focusing on the quality
of the projects. Under our clear business model, the Group is committed
to providing high-quality services for projects with sustainable and
healthy growth. During the Period under Review, the Group's net GFA
under management increased by approximately 6.6 million sgq.m., and
almost 95% of which came from contracts with third-party developers
or property owners' committees. As the central government as well as
provincial and municipal governments have promulgated provisions
to promote the formation of property owners' committees, and even
explicitly stipulated the establishment objectives of property owners'
committees, we believe that with years of experience in the operation
of second-hand residential quarters, the Group will be able to take
advantage of its first-mover advantage in the larger market and gain
popularity among new customers.

Residential property management is the root of the Group's survival.
With the support of its stable foundation, the Group has also actively
developed non-residential property management and urban service
management in recent years. During the Period under Review, the
Group's revenue contribution from non-residential projects accounted
for approximately 52.2%, the number of projects under management
increased by nearly 20%, and the total annualized contract amount
reached approximately RMB801 million. Currently, the Group has
provided services for 11 major categories of non-residential projects,
including more than 20 projects under management in each of the
categories of medical care, industrial parks, transportation facilities,
government facilities, and financial institutions, etc., with rich experience
accumulated. It is worth mentioning that the Group's medical care
product line is developing rapidly, contributing revenue of approximately
RMB175 million during the Period under Review, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 15.1%.
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Innovative life services
From community services to city services

Starting from the value proposition of "Gathering Love and Good Deeds
“, the Group aims to enhance customer satisfaction and happiness at the
core. The Group always adheres to providing customers with various
value-added services that are in rigid demand, with high frequency,
large volume and sustainability. The service radius is extended from
the community to urban street corners, and the service targets are
expanded from property owners to cab and internet taxi drivers, take-
away riders and the general public. The Group is actively building the
"Beautiful Neighbourhood” (353F) urban convenience service gathering
platform. The platform is being used as an online portal to provide city-
level new energy car charging, smart power exchange for riders, two-
wheeled vehicle charging, smart parking, and value-added services such
as delivery to home, home decoration, housekeeping, travel, home care,
infant and child care, and citizen sports, thus creating a shared City-level
good life.

By the end of 2022, the Group has installed more than 1,000 "Z$E#2 8"
smart rider battery changing stations, serving more than 22,000 urban
riders. During the Year under Review, those stations contributed to the
revenue by approximately RMB38 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 2.8 times.

In mid-2022, the Group established the Big Zebra Smart Energy ("Big
Zebra"), a newly-built subsidiary, and completed 7 commercial DC
charging stations for city-operated vehicles by the end of the year,
serving more than 6,000 internet taxi drivers. The daily charging capacity
was up to 300 KWH per charging gun, and the revenue contribution
amounted to approximately RMB700,000 per month. Meanwhile,
Big Zebra constructed 40 property AC charging stations for the
neighbourhood network and, combined with the strong offline service
capability of Yincheng Life Service, it serves an average of 2,000 property
owners per month, creating an innovative model of “home charging" for
urban private car owners.
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Passing on the spirit of kindness and love
By living our social values

Philanthropic love, good deeds and charitable aid are the spiritual
connotations that Yincheng Life Service has been spreading and passing
on.

The Group has always regarded its employees as a valued asset. We care
for them not only at work level but also at personal level. Only by working
and winning together can we go further. In order to help our employees
meet their imminent needs, the Group established the "Goodwill Mutual
Aid Association” among employees in late 2021. As of December 2022,
the association had raised donations of approximately RMB2.26 million.
It had approximately 8,000 members, including 96% of the middle and
senior management of the Company. At present, there are 6 employees
who have applied for and received financial support from the association.

By the end of 2022, the Group also set up the "Yincheng Charity Fund" to
support school-age children. At present, the fund has more than 1,100
donors and the donation amounts to RMB320,000. Smalls things make
big difference. Donations are just one of the ways to give back to the
community. We hope that the spirit of "kindness" will always spur us on to
become a better person and a better enterprise.

SUMMARY AND OUTLOOK

In 2022, despite all the hardships, Yincheng Life Service made concerted
efforts and achieved stable organic growth. At the beginning of 2023, we
have successfully tendered more than ten high-quality projects, hoping
that a good start will lay a solid foundation for 2023.

In terms of overall strategy, the Group adheres to the strategy of deep
cultivation of the Yangtze River Delta and regional concentration. We will
continue to expand the layout of the Nanjing metropolitan area, expand
the southern Jiangsu urban agglomeration and incubate the Huaihai
metropolitan area. While striving for a larger market share in Nanjing,
we will replicate the successful experience of Nanjing to more cities to
establish scale effect and brand effect. On the basis of maintaining high-
quality property services, we will increase the coverage and penetration
of value-added services to improve the overall gross profit margin.

The Group has adhered to the road of marketisation for many years. The
process is difficult, but the direction is correct. Now that we have reached
a critical period, whether we can use our accumulated experience to hold
on steadily to our advantages and follow the trend, this would become
an examination of our determination and adaptability. The Group will, as
always, be down-to-earth, excel in every detail and take every future step
well, and strive to become a respected century-old enterprise.

President
LI Chunling
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE R

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

The Group is an established property management service provider in
the PRC with over 25 years of industry experience that engages in the
provision of diversified property management services and value-added
services. As at 31 December 2022, the Group's property management
services covered 22 PRC cities, of which 18 cities are in the Yangtze
River Delta Megalopolis, with the GFA under management reaching
approximately 65.3 million sq.m. The Group managed 974 properties,
including 600 residential properties and 374 non-residential properties,
serving over 560,000 households which covers over 1.8 million people as
at 31 December 2022.

The Group's business covers a wide spectrum of properties, including
residential properties and 11 types of non-residential properties. The
Group operates its business along two main business lines, namely
the provision of (i) property management services; and (ii) value-
added services. Leveraging on the Group's business scale, operational
efficiency, excellent service quality, development potential and social
responsibility, the Group obtained various awards in 2022 including
ranking the 17th among the China Top 100 Property Management
Companies®, ranking the 2nd among the Top 50 Property Management
Companies of Jiangsu Province* and ranking the 1st in the Nanjing
Property Management Industry Credit Handbook Directory* for three
consecutive years.

The Group adheres to its business motto of “Operation is the Key,
Reputation Comes First” and service concept of “Living™ and “Industry™,
and has adopted the special business model of “Service alignment,
Business modularisation, Modules specialisation and Management
digitalisation” to serve and create value for its customers with quality
property management services.
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New non-residential project in 2022:
Luhe Tech Innovation Park in Nanjing

20225 AIBIFAETEE | mRAEHAIE

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

New residential project in 2022:
Nanjing Qiantang Wangjing Garden
GFA under management approximately 0.3 million sqm.
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Property Management Services

The Group provides a wide range of property management services that
comprises security services, cleaning services, car park management,
repair and maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and
mechanical car park equipment, gardening and landscaping services,
daily repair and maintenance of equipment and machinery and ancillary
customer services.

The contracted GFA and GFA under management

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's contracted GFA was approximately
68.5 million sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 10.7% as
compared to its contracted GFA at approximately 61.9 million sg.m. as at
31 December 2021. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase in
the number of projects undertaken by the Group from its new customers
and existing customers leveraging on the Group's solid reputation,
customers' recognition and market strength.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's GFA under management was
approximately 65.3 million sq. m., representing an increase of
approximately 11.1% as compared to its GFA under management
at approximately 58.8 million sq.m. as at 31 December 2021. The
increase was mainly attributable to the Group's solid and high quality
services and market reputation which enables the Group to have
a competitive advantage in the industry, leading to it being able to
secure the engagement as the property management service provider
for properties that are pending delivery to the owners during its
preliminary stage from property developers and completed properties
from property owners' associations and property developers by
replacing the then existing property management service providers.

In view of the Group's strong market expansion capabilities, the
number of new contracted projects undertaken from property owners’
associations accounted for a larger proportion as compared to those
undertaken from property developers, and such contracted projects
have quickly become the Group's projects under management a few
months after the Group has been engaged as the property management
service provider. As such, the Group's contracted GFA and GFA under
management in 2022 were similar.

The Group had 974 managed properties as at 31 December 2022,
representing an increase of approximately 16.4% or 137 managed
properties as compared to its 837 managed properties as at 31 December
2021,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

The table below sets out the Group's (i) contracted GFA; (ii) GFA under TFRZFH AT EAEAEEN()SOEER
management; (i) number of contracted properties; and (iv) number of & ; (i) EEEEEME ; (i) ENYWESHE , &

managed properties, as at the dates indicated: (V) EEMEHE :
As at 31 December
12A31H
2021 2022 Increase
20214 20224 &0
Contracted GFA™®) ('000 sq.m.) BHREmR WD
(FF75K) 61,944 68,533 10.6%
GFA under management™® ('000sq.m.) 1E&EZEmE W
(FF73K) 58,761 65,328 11.2%
Number of contracted properties =k ES 4= 863 999 15.8%
Number of managed properties e =EvES 4= 837 974 16.4%
Note: The above GFA excludes service engagements solely for the provision of repair ~ Mfzf:  LilEEEBEFSEMAKEHEESEHE B
and maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and mechanical car park ENERIR R I BB L R B A B R (R B AR B
equipment and gardening and landscaping services, without engaging the Group MIRAICEERBMELS A ERRHE
for other property management services. ) EIRRFBARTE T(E -

CONTINUOUS SCALE EXPANSION fRiEiF4EER

Contracted GFA GFA under management
ANEEER TEREER
million sq.m. BE&EFK million sq.m. BEF K

68.5 5.3

58.8

+11.2%

Growth rate
HRE:

-
+10.6%
Growth rate

HRE:

2021 2022 2021 2022
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Geographic Coverage

The Group has grown from a local property management service
provider in Nanjing to one of the leading property management service
providers in both Nanjing and the Jiangsu Province. As at 31 December
2022, our property management services covered 22 PRC cities, of
which 18 cities are in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis. The Group
has actively expanded its business to cities outside Nanjing and have
made rapid progress, in particular in Sunan and Huaihai districts.
As at 31 December 2022, the GFA under management in districts
outside Nanjing had an increase by approximately 8.1%, reaching
approximately 39.4% of the Group's total GFA under management.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERE SRR
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Further develop the market of wealthy cities in
the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis with Nanjing as the regional centre
Increase Presence in Nanjing, Expand the market in the Southern part of Jiangsu
Explore the market in Huaihai District
UERABEEZOEHR=AE RIS
MEMR -~ A « MREES

_\Jinﬂg Lianyungang
Zhengzhou o HE ® @Z% .
® Xi'An ® IRy Sugian Jlang§u Erovmce
7522 ey B IR Taizhou
: ; o ® Yancheng  Z&JN
=N [ )
Shan%qg ® TR Huai'an i s, Na\%tong
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BRI 2 [}
projects Chuzhou ————@ °
974 BEE RN Nanjing @ ;‘Zhenjiang
560 000 households [Tk o ® V,!Lm ST
I PSR Ma'anshan ® .\mf%
1 8 million people Eig| °® Suzhou
-0 mmAO0 Wuhu ERIN Chanazh
o angzhou
N Anhui Province #&i Hangzhou @ ﬁmg
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projects
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- S . ® Wenzhou
million people Zhejiang Province ST
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(1) of Nanjing's Total Population*
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* Data from Nanjing Bureau Of Statistics, Nanjing has a usual resident
population of 9.5 million as of the end of 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

The table below sets out the breakdown of (i) the Group's GFA under R HHFr~ B AL MIBE GBI DA9() &
management; and (ii) the number of the Group's managed propertiesby EBMNEEERREE ; L) EBNEEY
geographic region as at the dates indicated: EHERMA :

As at 31 December

#12A31H
2021
20214
Number of Number of
GFAunder managed GFA under managed
management /) properties management ™) Increase properties Increase
TERRE TENME TERE TEME
Hig " B ER " 1&m A 1&m
('000sq.m.) ('000 sq.m.) % ('000 sq.m.) %
FEBH FEBH FEBH
Nanjing MR 34,969 643 39,612 133 142 15.4
% % 595 60.6
Districts outside BRI E
Nanjing 23,192 194 25,716 8.1 232 19.6
% % 405 39.4
Total Mt 58,761 837 65,328 11.2 974 16.4
Note: The above GFA excludes service engagements solely for the provision of repair ~ Mfsf:  LilBREEBEFSEMAKEHEESHE B
and maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and mechanical car park BNk M I B AL SR B AE B R R E U R B
equipment and gardening and landscaping services, without engaging the Group MIKkiCEERGMBREAEERER
for other property management services. ) EEIBRTS

The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's property  TFE#EZF P~ EE R 2 &£ E %t IE & 15 8] 5
management services revenue by geographic region for the periods ¥ EIERF U PFAE

indicated:
For the year ended 31 December
HE12H31HILEE
2021 2022
20215 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Nanjing B 822,914 76.0 988,590 72.2
Districts outside Nanjing RGN & 259,209 24.0 380,048 27.8
Total 4t 1,082,123 100.0 1,368,638 100.0

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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Types of Property Management Services

The Group provides property management services in respect of both
residential and non-residential properties. As at 31 December 2022,
the non-residential properties managed by the Group comprised 11
types of properties, namely government facilities, financial institutions,
property sales offices, medical institutions, commercial complex, parks,
transportation facilities, industrial parks, mixed-use properties, schools

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD

MEEERBER

FEBBETRIFETYFE R EEER
F5o02022F128310  AEEEERNIFE
TYXERT1EY XA BIEUT R £ 7
Wis - MEHESH BEREB BERS
R RESE BERE EXEE EGH
mE BRI AKRIE

~

B AN
i IT0E

and office buildings.

Government Facilities Financial Institutions Property Sales Offices
BRI TR ESHE S

¢
o

Parks Medical Institutions
NESE BRI

£

Commercial Complex
[EE=ta=y

Non-residential properties JE{X 4%

i it

Office Buildings Education Institutions

AN 812

Transportation Facilities
R It

=

f=

Mixed-use Properties

RERRYZE

Industrial Parks

EXEE

While the provision of property management services in respect of
residential properties is the foundation of the Group's revenue generation
and scale expansion, the Group is actively seeking to improve its brand
awareness in the non-residential sector by diversifying its services
offerings to include other types of non-residential properties, optimising
its project portfolio and adjusting its business structure. The Group's
provision of property management services in respect of non-residential
properties has grown rapidly and reached a total of 374 projects as at 31
December 2022.

Newly entered city in 2022:
Lianyungang Liutang expressway service area
2022 FRTEAW
BEBNERBFE

BESETYERHYEEERBNALTE
EER W m AR RIERARE A EBIES
KB HMBARENIFETYEMARE L
BEUZHECERBEE - BEEBEREEGR
RBHEBERS URSHAEFETAREMN
ARG E AEBEIFETY FE R AU
FEERBNFRNRARER 112022128
3INHEHBITLEIER -

New non-residential project in 2022:

Najing Gaochun District People's Procuratorate
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

The table below sets out the breakdown of (i) the Group's GFA under R EHFFrm B EAGRYEER B D) &
management; and (ii) the number of the Group's managed propertiesby SEBEMNEERRERE ; R(i)AEBEEYE

property types as at the dates indicated:

HERM -

As at 31 December

®12A318
2021 2022
20214 20225
Number of Number of
GFA under managed GFA under managed
management(fee! (eI managementet!) Increase properties Increase
TEERE TEME TERE EENE
Hifg “) L= iR % 1&m %8 1&m
('000'sq.m.) (‘000 sq.m.) % %
(FFAR FEHHK)
Residential properties ~ FE¥% 46,406 525 50,770 9.4 600 143
Non-residential properties JEFE¥)% 12,355 312 14,558 17.8 374 19.9
Total 4t 58,761 837 65,328 1.2 974 16.4
Note: e

The above GFA excludes service engagements solely for the provision of repair and — Lifli2 SEEEN G IEAIIE (S TEBH - BB R
maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and mechanical car park equipment 1R B8 11 2R s 418 R AR & UK Bl T Re AL B € AR 7S
and gardening and landscaping services, without engaging the Group for other property  MEREEAREBIRHEE MY ESEIRFERFS LE-

management services.

The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's revenue and gross ~ RZH 5| )R Fi s HR RS A £ B R ) 55 B 2 5
profit margin from property management services by property types for g4 &R IRFS I 25 & EF) ZBB4T :

the periods indicated:

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A31HILEE
2021 2022
20214 20224
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue margin Revenue Increase margin
Wz EFE Wz 10 EFIE
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
ARETFT ARETT
Residential properties FEME 561,395 7.0 654,209 16.5 5.6
% % 51.9 41.8
Non-residential properties JE{EE )2 520,728 13.1 714,429 37.2 12.9
% % 48.1 52.2
Total “act 1,082,123 10.0 1,368,638 26.5 9.4

The revenue contribution from non-residential properties reached JEEEWENR2022FEENKEEZNOAR
approximately RMB714.4 million in 2022, representing an increase of #7714 4F 8T 82021 FEEIN437.2%EE
approximately 37.2% as compared to that in 2021 and has, for the first RBBETH XMW Z  (HAREBERZL
time, exceeded the revenue from residential properties, accounting for  52.2%~°

approximately 52.2% of the Group's total revenue.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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Revenue Model

For the year ended 31 December 2022, all of the Group's property
management fees were charged on a lump sum basis.

Project Sources

The Group is known for its market-oriented model and has strong
external expansion capabilities. As at 31 December 2022, over 90.3%
of the Group's GFA under management and approximately 95% of the
GFA newly gained in 2022 were obtained from the market, either from
property owners associations or independent third party property
developers. At the same time, the Group has also been providing property
management services to Yincheng Group and has been generating stable
income from such property projects at their preliminary stage.

The table below sets out the breakdown of (i) the Group's GFA under
management; and (i) the number of the Group's managed properties by
project sources as at the dates indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREREADR
IS
HE202261283'BLEEE  ZXEBFREY
*EEELEHHIUEL -
BHEER

AEBUHBFEEXNER  AF R85
EBFREAE 1o 120224128310 AEREB
BI03%MNEERERREBRAERN202245F
HESNASNHNEEEmBERTS LES
HREEES SN B IIE =AY ERER- A
LR REBT—ERENERRHEYE
BER% IZERHRERNYEER T
EERBEWA -

TR BREB RS DY) A
SENEERREER ; (i) XEENEEY
EEEPM

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2021 2022
20214 20227
GFA (Note) Number GFA (Note) Increase
BEmEE BEEE
) = D) QI
('000sg.m.) (000 sq.m.) %
(FERK (FERXK
Projects from independent ZREBIE=H
third parties HNIEE 52,759 807 58,992 11.8 942
% % 89.8 90.3
Projects from Yincheng RERIMER
Group HNIEE 6,002 30 6,336 5.6 32
% % 10.2 9.7
Total Mt 58,761 837 65,328 11.2 974

Note: The above GFA excludes service engagements solely for the provision of repair
and maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and mechanical car park
equipment and gardening and landscaping services, without engaging the Group
for other property management services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue generated from the
Group's property management services by project sources for the periods
indicated:

TREJAEBRFTRAE S ERRIEE R
RERRIE DY) R EIEARES W B AR

For the year ended 31 December

HE12H3HLEE
2021 2022
20214 202245
Revenue Revenue Increase
W W 1Em
RMB'000 RMB'000 %
ARET T AREFT
Projects from independent third parties REBUF=HNER 974,472 1,249,798 28.3
% % 90.1 91.3
Projects from Yincheng Group RERMERNIER 107,651 118,840 10.4
% % 9.9 8.7
Total MmE 1,082,123 1,368,638 26.5
Value-added Services 1B (EARTS

The Group provides value-added services to property owners and
residents of its managed properties with an aim to enhance the level
of convenience at its managed communities and customer experience,
satisfaction and royalty.

The Group's value-added services mainly include (i) common area
value-added services; and (ii) community convenience services; and
(iii) city services. The Group's common area value-added services
include rental of advertising space and the provision of management
services of the community's common area and spaces. The Group's
community convenience services refer to the comprehensive and
diversified convenience services provided by the Group in response
to the owners' needs, including but not limited to rental of gym and
membership services, the use of express delivery cabinets, home
renovation, housekeeping, home and elderly care and operation of staff
canteens for non-residential properties owners. In recent years, the
Group has introduced city services through intensive project deployment
to provide services to clients other than residents in communities under
management, including charging of electric vehicles and the rider battery
swap service. The city services have grown rapidly and increased its
revenue contribution to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's revenue generated
from the provision of value-added services amounted to approximately
RMB340.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 26.6% as
compared to that of approximately RMB268.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2021. Such increase was mainly attributable to an increase
in the number of projects undertaken by the Group and the diversification
of the scope of services provided by the Group following its continuous
business development.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's revenue and gross
profit margin of value-added services for the periods indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD

TREICPATABE A EEEERBHNWD
R B ZEAAE

For the year ended 31 December

HEN2RNALEE
2021 2022
20014 20226
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue margin Revenue Increase LET]
W EIES W 180 Rz
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
ARBTT AREFR
Value-added services BERY
(i) Commonareavalue-added (i) HFEZERIIL(ERH
service 174,525 52.2 216,460 240 48.0
(i) Community convenience (i) EEHEER R
services 84,646 222 86,149 1.8 22.0
(iii) City services (iii) 9 AR 9,589 105 37,7119 293.4 10.2
Total st 268,760 413 340,328 26.6 37.2
Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic MR ENREE

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has brought great challenges to
the property management industry in 2022, but has also highlighted the
value and contribution of the industry to the society. Notwithstanding the
increase in costs incurred in purchasing pandemic prevention materials,
there was no material adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
Group's operations, financial performance and financial position.

In response to the needs of property owners and residents and for their
convenience during the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group launched a
number of new value-added services in 2022. As a result of the increasing
demand for these services during the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had
in fact generated more revenue in its provision of value-added services as
compared to 2021.

The COVID-19 pandemic in the past three years has fostered closer
relationships between property management services providers and
property owners and residents. With the pandemic coming to an end,
the Group foresees that more residential communities will begin the
tendering for property management companies again. Equipped with our
excellent operational capabilities and reputation gained in the past three
years, we believe that we will be able to bid more high-quality projects
and serve more property owners in the post-pandemic era.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 26.8% from
approximately RMB1,351.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB1,712.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 as a result of (i) an increase in the number of residential and non-
residential projects undertaken by the Group which led to an increase in
the income from the provision of property management services; and (ii)
the diversification of the scope of value-added services provided by the
Group following its continuous business development.

The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's revenue by
business segments for the periods indicated:

Bt %% o] g8

U&=
AEFENKRGEEEE2021F12831HIEEE
HAREE1 351 3B BT NMAN26. 8%EEHE
2022F 1283 THIEFEN AR, 71298
B DHR)AERAREBEHNEERIEEE
BE#SEN ©BREVEEERBEHAS
WABMEE ; R(IBEEXEFFHZE > &
EERENIEERFEEEFEA

TREJIRAPITHABAERREB D EE D
Byt = BAAR

For the year ended 31 December

HE12B3HILLEE
2021 2022
20214 2022
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFTT ARETT
Property management services MEEERE 1,082,123 80.08 1,368,638 79.90
Value-added services IBER 268,760 19.89 340,328 19.87
Others (Notel Hih = ) 0.03 3,968 0.23
Total 4aEt 1,351,329 100.00 1,712,934 100.0
Note: Representing gross rental income from investment property operating leases: [t | ISREVELEHENEASWA - HHAEE

other lease payment, including fixed payments.

Revenue from the provision of property management services increased
by approximately 26.5% from approximately RMB1,082.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB1,368.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022. Such increase was primarily due to
the continuous increase in (i) the Group's GFA under management in
residential properties projects; and (ii) the number of non-residential
properties projects undertaken by the Group.

Revenue from the provision of value-added services increased by
approximately 26.6% from approximately RMB268.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB340.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. Such increase was primarily due to an increase
in (i) the number of projects under management; (ii) increase in value-
added services provided to the projects under management due to the
optimisation of the property management environment; and (iii) the
diversification of the scope of services provided by the Group.
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Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales consists of labour costs, subcontracting costs,
equipment operation and facility maintenance costs, material costs,
depreciation of right-of-use assets, office expenses and others.

The Group's cost of sales increased by approximately 28.4% from
approximately RMB1,132.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB1,453.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, primarily due to an increase in the number of staff as a result of the
expansion of the Group's business.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's gross profit increased by
approximately 18.3% from approximately RMB219.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB259.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022. The gross profit margin decreased
slightly from approximately 16.2% for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately 15.1% for the year ended 31 December 2022. Such
decrease was primarily due to (i) an increase in the number of staff of
the Group as a result of the expansion of its business; and (ii) the fact
that the minimum wage level in the Jiangsu Province has increased by
approximately 13% since August 2021, while the social security base
in the Jiangsu Province has increased in July 2021 and January 2022
respectively, with the aggregate increment being approximately 26%,
resulting in a substantial increase in the wages and social insurance
payable by the Group, and hence a substantial increase in staff cost.

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains mainly represents interests income,
investment income, government grants, gain on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment, fair value gains on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and others.

The Group's other income and gains increased by approximately 31.7%
from approximately RMB12.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately RMB16.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, primarily due to the receipt of tax subsidy from the government.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses consist primarily of staff
costs, advertising and promotional expenses, office expenses, business
development expenses, travelling expenses and others.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses decreased by
approximately 17.2% from approximately RMB5.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB4.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to effective cost control
conducted by the Group.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses primarily include staff costs,
professional fees, office expenses, business development expenses,
rental expenses, travelling expenses, depreciation and amortisation,
bank charges, taxes and others.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The Group's administrative expenses increased by approximately 27.7%
from approximately RMB73.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2027 to approximately RMB93.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, primarily due to an increase in staff costs as a result of the Group's
business expansion.

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets, Net

The Group's net impairment losses on financial assets increased by
approximately 53.6% from approximately RMB11.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB17.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to an increase in trade and
related companies receivables of the Group.

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs mainly include interest on bank borrowings and
other loans and interest on lease liabilities in relation to lease liabilities
recorded for properties leased by the Group for operation of its offices
and fitness centres.

The Group's finance costs decreased by approximately 27.0% from
approximately RMB10.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB7.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, primarily due to the repayment of short-term borrowings of
approximately RMB104 million.

Income Tax Expense

The Group's income tax refers to PRC enterprises income tax at a tax
rate of 25% on taxable profits of its subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC. Some subsidiaries of the Group are qualified as small-low-profit
enterprises and thus are subject to a preferential tax rate of 2.5% to 5%
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Group's income tax expense increased by approximately 11.4% from
approximately RMB34.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB38.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
primarily due to an increase in the profit before tax.

Profit for the Year

As aresult of the foregoing, the Group's profit increased by approximately
18.8% from approximately RMB94.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB112.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2022. Profits attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
RMB106.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 20.3% as
compared to the corresponding period in 2021. The net profit margin
was approximately 6.6% for the year ended 31 December 2022, down 0.4
percentage points from approximately 7.0% in the corresponding period
in 2021. While the net profit margin decreased slightly, it was still at a
normal level. The decrease is due to the decrease in gross profit margin.
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Liquidity, Reserves and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy and maintained
a healthy financial position during the year ended 31 December 2022. The
Group's current assets amounted to approximately RMB1,024.7 million as
at 31 December 2022, representing an increase of approximately 7.4% as
compared to that of approximately RMB954.1 million as at 31 December
2021. The Group's cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
RMB292.1 million as at 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of
approximately 45.7% as compared to that of RMB538.1 million as at 31
December 2021, primarily due to (i) a decrease in short-term borrowings
by approximately RMB90.5 million; (ii) an increase in staff costs by
approximately RMB104.8 million; (iii) the amount of tax paid increased by
approximately RMB19.2 million; and (iv) an increase in financial assets in
fair value through profit or loss by approximately RMB76.4 million.

The Group's total equity amounted to approximately RMB365.0 million
as at 31 December 2022, representing an increase of approximately
33.7% as compared to that of approximately RMB272.9 million as at 31
December 2021. Such increase was mainly due to (i) an increase in the
profit of approximately RMB17.8 million during the year (ii) an increase in
total comprehensive income of approximately RMB21.2 million; and (iii)
the declaration of 2021 final dividends of approximately RMB27.3 million.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group's property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
RMB89.6 million as at 31 December 2022, representing an increase of
approximately 19.1% as compared to that of approximately RMB75.2
million as at 31 December 2021. This was primarily due to the increase
of office equipment, electronic and other devices purchased during the
year.

Trade Receivables

The Group's trade receivables primarily consist of receivables for its
property management services and value-added services from its
customers. The Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately
RMB342.1 million as at 31 December 2022, representing an increase of
approximately 48.1% as compared to that of approximately RMB231.0
million as at 31 December 2021. This was primarily due to (i) the
increase in the Group's revenue in 2022; and (ii) the combined effect of
the increase of the Group's non-residential properties projects; and the
usual practice of non-residential properties customers paying property
management fee once per quarter.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

The Group's prepayments, deposits and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB100.5 million as at 31 December 2022, representing
an increase of approximately 31.0% as compared to that of approximately
RMB76.7 million as at 31 December 2021. This was mainly due to an
increase in deposits and other receivables including bid bond and
performance bond as a result of an increase in the number of property
management projects undertaken by the Group.
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Due from Related Companies

The Group recorded due from related companies of approximately
RMB201.0 million as at 31 December 2022, representing an increase of
approximately 94.4% as compared to that of approximately RMB103.4
million as at 31 December 2021. The increase was primarily due to
there being (i) approximately RMB55.6 million (2021: Nil) deposits
of carparking space to Yincheng International and (ii) approximately
RMB31.0 million advance to Jiangsu Jingan Security Services Ltd.*, a
company owned as to 33.97% by the Group.

Trade Payables

The Group's trade payables primarily consist of payables to suppliers and
subcontractors. The Group's trade payables amounted to approximately
RMB75.4 million as at 31 December 2022, representing an increase of
approximately 69.4% as compared to that of approximately RMB44.5
million as at 31 December 2021. This was mainly due to an increase in the
number of property management projects undertaken by the Group.

Other Payables, Deposits Received and Accruals

The Group's other payables, deposits received and accruals amounted to
approximately RMB288.0 million as at 31 December 2022, representing
an increase of approximately 16.6% as compared to that of approximately
RMB247.0 million as at 31 December 2021. This was mainly due to (i)
an increase in the collection and remittance of public expenses resulted
from the increase in the number of property management projects
undertaken by the Group; and (ii) an increase in the remuneration
payable to staff as a result of the increase in the number of staff brought
by the business expansion of the Group.

Contract Liabilities

The Group receives payments from its customers based on billing
schedules as provided in the property management agreements.
A portion of the payments are usually received in advance of the
performance under the contracts which are mainly from the provision of
property management services.

The Group's contract liabilities amounted to approximately RMB338.2
million as at 31 December 2022, representing an increase of
approximately 14.3% as compared to that of approximately RMB295.8
million as at 31 December 2021. This was mainly due to the Group's
practice of collecting part of the property management fees for the
upcoming year in advance during the previous year, and therefore, the
increase in the scale of the Group's projects has led to an increase in the
amount of property management fees received in advance.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of RMB118.5 million, as compared to RMB209.0 million as at
31 December 2021. The Group's borrowings are all denominated in RMB.
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The table below sets out the Group's total borrowings and effective

interest rates as at the dates indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B mAD

TREFIAEBICFT B AR ERKRER

ES

As at 31 December

F12831H
Effective Effective
interest interest
2022 rate 2021 rate
20224 BRAE 20214 LIRS
RMB'000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
ARBETT Gl ARBTIT (B2t
Current: BNHA :
Bank loans - secured RITER—BER 105,000 4.35 209,000 4.20-4.35
Other borrowings - secured HihER—B#E R 7,066 6.08-7.67 - -
Non-current JERNER :
Other borrowings - secured HER—B H#& R 6,480 6.08-7.67 -
Total st 118,546 209,000

The table below sets out the repayment schedule of the Group's TFR&EFIP AT~ H AR EBGRIERERB
borrowings as at the dates indicated: x:

As at 31 December

*12A31H
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT
Repayable within one year EM1EREER 112,066 209,000
Repayable in the second year FER2FNEERE 6,235 -
Repayable in the third to fifth years, inclusive FER3ESFRER

(BEEEMS) 245 -
118,546 209,000

SR ERBAERAT

0202FERE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Financial Risks

The Group is exposed to risks arising from its financial instruments such
as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Interest Rate Risk
The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest
rate risk, and obtains all bank borrowings with a fixed rate.

Credit Risk

The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics, such as instrument types and credit risk ratings
for the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and
calculation of impairment.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, the fair values
of pledged deposits, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, and amounts due from
related companies included in the statement of financial position
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, all cash and cash equivalents were deposited in
high-credit-quality financial institutions without significant credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

Foreign Exchange Risk

As all of the Group's businesses are conducted in the PRC, revenue
and profits for the year ended 31 December 2022 were denominated in
RMB. The major foreign currency source for the Group is the fundraising
following the successful listing on the Stock Exchange in 2019, all of
which were in Hong Kong dollars. As at 31 December 2022, the Group did
not have significant foreign currency exposure from its operations. The
Group currently has not used derivative financial instruments to hedge
its foreign exchange risk. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Gearing Ratio

The Group's gearing ratio is calculated based on net debt divided by
total capital plus net debt. The Group includes, within net debt, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings amounts due to related companies
and lease liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents. The Group's capital
represents equity attributable to owners of the Company. As at 31
December 2022, the Group's gearing ratio was not applicable.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's bank and other borrowings were
secured by: (i) certain of the Group's buildings with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB22.5 million; (ii) certain of the Group's office
equipment, electronic and other devices with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB17.3 million; (iii) the Group's investment properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB34.8 million;
(iv) the Group's right of receipt of property management fee and new
energy vehicle station charging fee managed by the Group in the future;
and (v) a mortgage over the entire issued share capital of Nanjing
Zhihui Meijia Technology Service Co., Ltd.*, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no other pledged assets as at
31 December 2022.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities or guarantees as at 31
December 2022.

Significant Investments Held

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not hold any significant
investment during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 9,166 employees
(2021: 6,930 employees). The Group offers employees competitive
remuneration packages that include fees, salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind, bonuses and pension scheme contribution, equity-
settled and share option scheme and social welfare. The Group
contributes to social insurance for its employees, including medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity
insurance, unemployment insurance and housing funds.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government, and are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to this retirement benefits scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contribution under this retirement benefits scheme is available to reduce
the contribution payable in future years.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

The Group will continue to focus on its existing property management
services and value-added services. Save as disclosed in the Prospectus,
no concrete plan for future investment is in place as at the date of this
report.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
report, the Group did not perform any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and associates.

Subsequent Events

The Directors are not aware of any material events undertaken by the
Group subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERE SRR

BERH

122022128318 AEERIRIT R EME
MU T RIEER () AEEREFEOR
ARMB2258BTHNETET ; () AEEK
AFEARARBIIIEETNETHAE
mif BT HREa REMER (i) AEERE
BMEOSAREILEETHRENE ; (iv)
REBRRWEY X EIEE B MRS E

BISWWERIER ; (V) AEEEZEEN
BARMRESEZENKBRBEARQATNZ
B EEITRAIRE

PR EXPRIEEE SN > 102022128318 &
ANEMEAMKREE-

HAREE

AREEMR2022F12831B L ESEANGAER
SIER

RAEZEARE

PRAREPTIMEEIN B E2022812831H
I FERERTEFEITMANEAKRE

EE REMMEER

R2022F12B31H  REBEHEEF?,166%
BE (20215 1 6,930 HEE) - AEFAMBEE
REES FHE R RBYEF  TEAKE
REstBIMHR B E R ERETEI UK
HEERANEAFREINFHEE ~EEE
HESHMEERRE TEMFRR  EEFRE
Y ERRBR-KERBREFELABEEHZR

oo O
S

A& B H P E R Y A B B9 8 B 745 T B BUR
BIFHIREERABAHE LS » WABIRIK
BRI —E LA E 2 Upt@EF 1R
HET - AEEUZRARENFENE—F
E 7 R ¥R 5% 51 8 1F AR & 7R - S LR AK
BAETEIIE TR ERWHR A BIERLD R
FEBMBHER-

AREARENBKREBELEE

FEEFEBESINENNYEEERS
RIBERT - FRIBRERPIIREE I IO A
BEEE BIERKRRESENEMARES

£

BEARKBEREE
BE20202E1283 L EEREEARS
£8 7 B AT 4 T B 2 B R B
BINEAKEIHE -

HR1BH18
BFREXRBEHEIN EZTTANBARERR
2022F 1231 HEMREEARSHIAZEEDN

ERERFE-

SRIAESERISARAR
2022FEERE



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing and Change in Use of Proceeds

Use of Proceeds

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 6 November 2019 with the issue of 66,680,000 new
shares. The total net proceeds (the "Net Proceeds”) from the listing of
the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(including the exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in
the Prospectus) amounted to approximately HK$131.4 million after
deducting the underwriting fees and commissions and other expenses
in connection with the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus).
As at 31 December 2022, the amount of Net Proceeds which remains
unutilised amounted to approximately HK$38.6 million (the “Unutilised
Net Proceeds").

As explained below, after due and careful consideration of the current
business environment and development needs of the Group, the Board
has recently resolved to change the use of the Unutilised Net Proceeds
by reallocating the entire HK$38.6 million of the Unutilised Net Proceeds
originally allocated for expanding the Group's business by mergers
and acquisitions or investment in order to expand its market shares in
the property management service industry in the PRC, pursuant to the
original allocation as disclosed in the Prospectus, to general working
capital for the Group. Set out below is the actual utilisation of the Net

LTS NRIERRKRFIfSTIERGREE
Frfg#i i
RNTBEBE1T66,680,0008% 5 B2 1D LTI
201911 B6HEBRFIER Lo ARAE
B EBRZ T EMR ERAAETIE (B1E766
B (EERBRER)) (FRSmE
BEE)) BRI ANAI3LEE BT EN%
BREKEE (TEEBRER NEHER
MAEEUREMEAS) 5220226128318 »
FrEmIB R EAHARENNAIEES

7t (TREVAFRSRIBEFE)) ©

it 2 A

MU TXHRA CEERBREBENER
RIERAEENZEREME ESSTHHER

BEFAPAMESREFRNABL  RIREA

BRERFEENRENMRIFEBHBRKRE
BAAERER UMBAETHRRAYES
BRBEITETRMENRE BRSNS FEE
B EEBTEBERDEIELAERN—K
HEBE  FXHEAN2022E12831HR1E
NEFENERERER UNEBEZEH K

Proceeds as at 31 December 2022 and the proposed change of use of the ~ EFRFFERUIEE BRI AR
Unutilised Net Proceeds.
Remaining
balance of Expected
Actual use net proceeds Revised timeline for
Planned use of proceeds as at asat allocation of utilising the
of proceeds 31 December 31 December remaining net remaining net
intotal 2022 2022 proceeds proceeds
142022 120225
Fifg R 12A318 126318 R R
g HFR{EIE WEERMIE  MERFERIERE FERERE
B lha BRME BT NEEINE AR
HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
TEx TER FEx TEn
Continue to expand the Group's business by mergers — BEHEIRERBERAEEERBAR 78,853 40,261 38,592 - Not applicable
and acquisitions or investmentsinordertoexpand  REEIYE EERETENTIENE TER
its market shares in the property management
service industry in the PRC
Investinintelligent systems to improve the Group's — RERBRRAMNNEFEENRKES 19,713 19,713 - Not applicable
service quality and enhance its customers'experience  RIFFFERFER TER
Upgrade the Group's internalinformation technology ~ FHAAEENABESRFEZFLURSE 13,142 13,142 - Not applicable
system to enhance operational efficiency LV TER
Continue to recruit more technical and managerial EEREESRWREEAL BRAE 6,571 6,571 - Not applicable
talents and, at the same time, provide training SERSRMEEI WEARERLE TER
tothe Group's employees for the expansion of
its operations
General working capital —hEEES 13,142 13,142 38,592 31 December 2023
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Reasons for the proposed change in use of Net Proceeds

The original expected timeline for utilising the remaining Net Proceeds
in respect of the expansion of the Group's business by mergers and
acquisitions or investments in order to expand its market shares in the
property management service industry in the PRC was by 31 December
2022.

Although the Group has been striving to seek merger and acquisition
targets that can bring synergies and offer reasonable acquisition
consideration to the Group, the Group has been unable to identify
suitable acquisition target(s) for the past two years. The Board is of the
view that reallocating the Unutilised Net Proceeds to general working
capital will allow the Group to more effectively, among others, (i) bid
for more and higher quality projects; (i) improve customer service; and
(iii) capture business opportunities by strengthening its brand image
and by formulating and implementing targeted marketing strategies.
The change in the use of the Unutilised Net Proceeds allows the Group
to deploy its financial resources more efficiently and to make better use
of this fund for general operating needs based on the Group's current
operations and the actual market conditions.

In view of the above, the Board has decided to reallocate the Unutilised
Net Proceeds originally intended for expansion by mergers and
acquisition or investments to general working capital. The Directors
are of the opinion that the proposed change of use of the Unutilised Net
Proceeds isin the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders as a
whole.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEhEREEBZ BEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Chunling, aged 47, is an executive Director and the president of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall strategic decision,
business planning and daily management and operation of the Group. Mr,
Li joined the Group in February 2074. He was appointed as a Director on
13 June 2019 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 18 June
2019.

Mr. Li received his bachelor's degree in law from the Renmin University
of China in the PRC in September 2008, and his Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA) degree from China Europe International
Business School in the PRC in November 2018. He has obtained
professional qualification as a certified property manager from the
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC* since
February 2014, and was granted the award of Model Worker of Nanjing by
the Nanjing Municipal People's Government of the PRC in 2006. Mr. Li has
more than 25 years of experience in the hotel and real estate industry in
the PRC.

Ms. HUANG Xuemei, aged 54, is an executive Director, the vice president
and CFO of the Company. She is primarily responsible for the overall
administration, audit supervision and the public building department
of the Group. Ms. Huang joined the Group in December 2004. She was
appointed as a Director on 13 June 2019 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 18 June 2019.

Ms. Huang received her diploma in business administration under
the Jiangsu Province Higher Education Self-study Examination* from
the Nanjing University in the PRC in June 1989, and obtained her
qualification as an intermediate accountant from the Ministry of Finance
of the People's Republic of China in May 1999. She then completed her
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) course in Nanjing
University Business School in the PRC in October 2018. She has more
than 30 years of experience in financial management and accounting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XIE Chenguang, aged 60, is the chairman of the Board and a non-
executive Director of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the
formulation and provision of guidance and development strategies
for the overall development of the Group. Mr. Xie joined the Group in
December 1998. He was appointed as a Director on 13 June 2019 and
was re-designated as a non-executive Director on 18 June 2019. Mr. Xie
is currently also a non-executive director of Yincheng International, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1902).

Mr. Xie obtained a diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Nanjing
Jinling Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983 and obtained
professional qualification as a senior engineer in November 2020. He
then obtained his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
degree from China Europe International Business School in the PRC
in September 2007. He was more than 30 years of experience in the
engineering and real estate industry in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUANG Qingping, aged 59, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for the provision of guidance for
the overall development of the Group. Mr. Huang joined the Group in
September 1992. He was appointed as a Director on 3 April 2019 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director on 18 June 2019. Mr. Huang
is currently also the chairman and a non-executive director of Yincheng
International, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1902).

Mr. Huang obtained his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from
Nanjing Jinling Vocational University* in the PRC in August 1983. He has
over 30 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. MA Baohua, aged 61, is a non-executive Director of the Company.
He is primarily responsible for the provision of guidance for the overall
development of the Group. Mr. Ma joined the Group in February 2004. He
was appointed as a Director on 13 June 2019 and was re-designated as
a non-executive Director on 18 June 2019. Mr. Ma is currently also the
president and an executive director of Yincheng International, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1902).

Mr. Ma received his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from
Jinling Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983. He obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in urban and rural planning and land management
from Nanjing University in the PRC in July 2001 and obtained professional
qualification as a registered urban planner since May 2001. He then
received his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
degree from China Europe International Business School in the PRC in
September 2007. He has over 30 years of experience in the real estate or
real estate-related industry in the PRC.

In 2017, Mr. Ma was recognised as one of the top 100 property managers
co-awarded by Sina Finance, Leju, China Real Estate Association,
Shanghai Securities News and China Entrepreneur Magazine.

Mr. ZHU Li, aged 49, is a non-executive Director of the Company. He
is primarily responsible for the provision of guidance for the overall
development of the Group. Mr. Zhu joined the Group in July 1995. He was
appointed as a Director on 13 June 2019 and was re-designated as a
non-executive Director on 18 June 2019. Mr. Zhu is currently also the vice
president and an executive director of Yincheng International, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1902).

Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor's degree in construction engineering
from Southeast University in the PRC in July 1999. Mr. Zhu received his
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) degree from China
Europe International Business School in the PRC in September 2010. He
has over 25 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEBZBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOW Siu Hang, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 October 2019. He is primarily
responsible for supervision and provision of independent advice to the
Board. Mr. Chow has extensive knowledge and expertise on capital
market transactions including initial public offerings, financial advisory
and merger and acquisitions.

Mr. Chow is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chow obtained his bachelor's degree in accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong in November 1998. He has over 20
years of experience in the investment banking and financial auditing field.

Since June 2018, Mr. Chow has been an independent non-executive
director of Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited, a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8223) which principally engages
in provision of equipment-based finance leasing services to small and
medium-sized enterprises customers in the printing, logistics and
medical device industries in the PRC.

Mr. LI Yougen, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 15 October 2019. He is primarily responsible
for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of laws degree from Nanjing University in July
1987 and obtained a master degree in laws from Nanjing University in
April 1990. Subsequently, he obtained a PhD degree in Economic Law
from the Renmin University of China in July 2002. He has over 30 years of
experience in teaching PRC law in China.

From May 2016 to April 2022, Mr. Li was an independent non-executive
director of Nanjing Quanxin Cable Technology Co. Ltd., a company that
is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 300447) which
principally engages in the development and production of military
lighting and electric transmission products. From 2016 to 2021, he was an
independent non-executive director of Luculent Smart Technologies Co.,
Ltd., a company that principally engages in intelligence construction.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. MAO Ning, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 15 October 2019. He is primarily responsible
for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Mao obtained his bachelor degree in engineering (automatic control
systems) from the National University of Defense Technology in January
1982 and obtained a master degree in engineering (automatic control
systems) from the National University of Defense Technology in July
1984. Subsequently, he also obtained a PhD degree in engineering from
Nanjing University in December 1988. He has over 35 years of experience
in teaching management scientific.

Since January 2020, Mr. Mao has been an independent non-executive
director of Meter Instruments Co., Limited, a company that is listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 301006) which principally engages in the production of ultrasonic
water watches and electric watches. Since December 2021, he has also
been an independent non-executive director of Sumec Corporation
Limited, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600710) which principally engages in trade and services and engineering
contracting. Previously from 2015 to 2021, he served and resigned as
an independent non-executive director of Jinling Hotel Corp Ltd., CTS
International Logistics Corp Ltd. and Nanjing Qixia Development Co., Ltd.,
all of which were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code
601007, 603128 and 600533, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. YIN Xiaoli, aged 42, is the Group's vice president. She is in charge of
the Group's operation management centre and branding department. Ms.
Yin joined the Group in July 2002 and was appointed as a vice president
subsequently.

Ms. Yin received her bachelor's degree in information management from
the School of Government of Nanjing University in the PRC in July 2002
and has obtained her professional qualification as a corporate human
resources manager (Grade 2) from the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security of the PRC in July 2012. She then obtained her
qualification as a security (Grade 3) from the Jiangsu Human Resources
and Social Security Department™ of the PRC in December 2016. She has
over 20 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Ms. FAN Xingxia, aged 43, is the Group's vice president. She is in charge
of the Group's Jiangnan business unit. Ms. Fan joined the Group in August
2003 and was appointed as a vice president subsequently.

Ms. Fan received her diploma in administration management from the
Southwest University of Science and Technology in the PRC (which
was a long distance learning course) in July 2013. She has obtained
her professional qualification as property manager from the Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security Department® of the PRC in
September 2011. She has over 17 years of experience in the real estate
industry in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEBZBEFE

Mr. JIANG Zubai, aged 37, is the Group's vice president. He is in charge of
the Group's Sunan business unit. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in April 2018
and was appointed as a vice president subsequently.

Mr. Jiang received his diploma in human resources management from
the Guangxi Guilin Aerospace School* in the PRC in June 2009, and
his bachelor's degree in human resources under the Jiangxi Province
Higher Education Self-study Examination from the Jiangxi University
of Technology in the PRC in December 2074. He then obtained his
professional qualification as a corporate human resources manager
(Grade 1) from the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of
the PRC in December 2017. He has over 12 years of experience in human
resources and in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Ms. Zhou Guihua, aged 45, is the Group's vice president. She is in charge
of the Group's Xincheng business unit. Ms. Zhou joined the Group in July
2019 and was appointed as the vice president subsequently.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhou worked as the general manager in
Nanjing Baishi Property Management Co., Ltd.* from May 2014 to July
2019 where she was responsible for the overall business planning and
daily management and operation.

Ms. Zhou received her master's degree in business administration from
the Southeast University in the PRC in July 2011. She obtained her
professional qualifications from the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC as a corporate human resources manager
(Grade 2) in 2008, a certified property managerin 2013, and an economic
professionalin 2019. She has accumulated over 14 years of experience in
business management and real estate industry in the PRC.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsang Qi Yin was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on 26 November 2022.

Ms. Tsang is an associate member of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and the Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom. Ms. Tsang obtained a bachelor's degree in international
business from the University of South Australia in 2006.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to ensure that its business operations and
affairs are conducted in accordance with high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company's corporate
governance practices are based on the principles of good corporate
governance as set out in the CG Code. The Company has complied with
the code provisions as set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31
December 2022. The Company will continue to review and enhance its
corporate governance practices, and identify and formalise measures
and policies to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT

The Board's chairman throughout the year is Mr. Xie Chenguang, being
a non-executive Director. Mr. Li Chunling is the Group's president. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are currently delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's senior
management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the
success of the Company by providing effective leadership and direction
to its business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of its
operations. The Board is responsible for all decision-making in respect of
all major matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
systems, risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those which may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
change of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial
and operational matters. The Board has the full support of the Group's
management to discharge its responsibilities.

The Company's day-to-day management, administration and operation
are currently delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions. All Directors have full and timely access to all
relevant information of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
Director may seek independent advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board Committees. Further details of the Board Committees are set out
below in this corporate governance report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRS

COMPOSITION

The Nomination Committee ensures that the composition of the Board
has a balance of skills, experiences, qualifications and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business
and development. The current composition of the Board consists of four
(4) non-executive Directors, two (2) executive Directors and three (3)
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors are responsible for exercising independent judgement on
various Board decisions. The Directors during the year ended 31
December 2022 were set out below:

Non-executive Directors

XIE Chenguang (Chairman)
HUANG Qingping

MA Baohua

ZHU Li

Executive Directors

LI Chunling (President)
HUANG Xuemei (Vice President)

Independent non-executive Directors

CHOW Siu Hang
LI Yougen
MAO Ning

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract, and
each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter, with our Company
for a term of three years commencing from 26 August 2022, subject to
the retirement and re-election in accordance with the Articles and the
Listing Rules, which may be terminated by (i) not less than three months'
notice in writing served by either the executive Director or the Company;
or (ii) not less than two months' notice in writing served by either the
non-executive Director, the independent non-executive Director or the
Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. HUANG Qingping, Mr. MA
Baohua and Mr. CHOW Siu Hang will retire from the office of Director and
shall, being eligible for re-election at the forthcoming AGM to be held on
Thursday, 1 June 2023, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board
brings a diverse range of expertise, skills and independent judgement
on issues relating to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts
of interests and management process to ensure that the interests
of all of the Shareholders have been duly considered. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing regarding
his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Board and the Nomination Committee considered that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

There is a balance of skills and experiences in the Board, which is
appropriate for the requirements of the Company’'s business. The
Directors’ biographical information is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

The Board considers the above measures could facilitate the Directors to
contribute effectively and independent views and input are available to
the Board and Board Committees.

Each of the Board members has no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other

The list of current Directors (by category) is also disclosed in this
annual report and all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time. The Company also
maintains on its website (www.yinchenglife.hk) and on the Stock
Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) an updated list of current
Directors (by category) identifying their role and function.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing different aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board Committees have been established with defined written
terms of reference, which are posted on the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website (www.yinchenglife.
hk). All Board Committees should report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations made. All Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company's expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 15 October 2019 with
written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company’s website. The Audit Committee is delegated
with the authority from the Board to provide independent oversight of
the Group's financial reporting and internal control systems, and the
adequacy of the external audits.
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The Audit Committee currently consists of two (2) independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chow Siu Hang and Mr. Mao Ning, and
one (1) non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Xie Chenguang. Mr. Chow Siu
Hang currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee, who holds
the appropriate professional qualifications as required under the Listing
Rules. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the
code provision D.3.3 of the CG Code, the members of the Audit Committee
should meet at least twice a year to consider the budget, revised budget,
interim report and annual report before submission to the Board and
meet with the external auditors at least twice a year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee has held
three (3) meetings which were also with the presence of the external
auditor. During the said meetings, the following major tasks were
performed:

a. reviewed and had discussion on the (i) annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021,
annual results announcement and the annual report; (i) interim
condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2022, interim results announcement and interim
report; (i) the audit plan and scope for the annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022; and
(iv) the related accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the relevant audit findings;

b.  reviewed and had discussion on the risk management and Group's
internal control systems; and

C. reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal audit function;
and

d. had discussion and recommendation on the re-appointment of the
external auditor.

The Audit Committee has recommended the re-appointment of the
external auditor, Ernst & Young.

The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has properly
discharged its duties and responsibilities during the year ended 31
December2022.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the fees paid/payable to the
auditor in respect of the services provided by the auditor to the Group
were as follows:

BERZEEHBEMQ)LBIUFNTES
(EﬂFﬂJEIE%E&%E%E)&—(1)%5‘!5%%
TEF EN#ERCKE) A
BEEEZZEETER 1 E
E’Jﬁ“‘%ﬁé*&ﬁﬁﬁ% Bz
REE KR EEERTRZTRIE
B EREBGMBAR S
BOLUNEBERXEERER2AIE R
SRS MRS RER WLE
BZEEM S mm R o

=

HE2022F1283'HEEE BREES
BOT=0C)hoE HINVEINNEZEEMLEE -
REdEgZP BT T UTEEER

ofF
H¥
i

m
=

Xﬂ]ﬂh
) 3t
S D
i

o
S 5
B i
I
X R  E AL

=
¢
#
o
w

G
S
bl

S
&
r
P

—

EZE2021F12831HLE
\$/—:\. MR FEEEER
|)E56:|:2022£|56}§30E|U:/\
BRiRE IR s P HEZE
%EEJ;(nn§&j12022£ﬁ1z
NEEGZEHHEREN
& ; (i )ztsﬁlhiwm

A OfF 7 Bl
ﬁ%;m%
=y

th

&

B B ey
%m

1 2 m OF &5 & A

E'[
i

R Al

- B X IO a0 A [ 5B

A Bl 0

O
o
o
;%;gw

gumﬂk%@ﬂ’]ﬂﬁ BE KA

)

i}
i
Bt

EERBESRAENNS ; &
d.  SwmAERERINSIZREN-
BZLEGERBEEINSIZHENZ K G ot hm
EHFRo

HE2022E1283'HEEE  EFERA
ZEECEYERTHBB KBS -

R G

B E2022F12831HILFE > stz
EEFRMERB NI REMmZ &R
B

2021

202145

RMB

Nature of service R E ARHETT

Audit services Z AR 7% 2,580,000 2,300,000
Consultation services in relation to the RN B RERRS

preparation of the environmental, social and BRINEE R AR
governance report 150,000 150,000

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2022



NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 15 October
2019 with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website. The Nomination
Committee is delegated with the authority from the Board to formulate
and implement the policy for nominating the Board's candidates for
election by the Shareholders and to assess the independent non-
executive Directors’ independence and commitment.

The Company also has the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy in place. The Nomination Policy aims at improving the
transparency around the process by setting out the criteria and factors
to be taken into account by the Nomination Committee in selecting
and recommending candidates as Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors).

In identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members of the
Board, the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy. A number of factors
will be taken into account, including but not limited to age, skills, regional
and industry experience, cultural and educational background, race,
gender and other qualities. In forming its perspective on diversity, the
Nomination Committee will also take into account factors based on the
Company's own business model and specific needs from time to time.

The Board currently has one female Director and as such has achieved
gender diversity in respect of the Board. We will continue to strive
to enhance female representation over time as and when suitable
candidates are identified and achieve an appropriate balance of
gender diversity with reference to the shareholders' expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. The Nomination
Committee shall review the diversity and composition of the Board at
least annually taking into account the Group's business model and needs
and shall monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and, if
appropriate, make recommendations on proposed changes to the Board.
We will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at
mid to senior level and we are committed to provide career development
opportunities for female staff so that we will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to the Board in near future.

As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio in the workforce (including
senior management) of the Company of female and male are 58% and
42%, which the Board considers to reflect that a gender equality principle
has been adhered to by the Group. The Board has not identified any
challenges for maintaining gender diversity in the workforce so far.

The Group is determined to and will continue to maintain gender diversity
and equality in terms of the Board and the general workforce.

The Company plans to offer all-rounded trainings to female employees
whom we consider to have the suitable experience, skills and knowledge
of our operation and business, including but not limited to, business
operation, management, accounting and finance, legal and compliance
and research and development.

The Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy have been reviewed
and shall continue to be reviewed on a regular basis.
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Both the Directors and the Shareholders have the right to nominate a
person(s) to be appointed as a Director. Upon assessing the merits and,
for independent non-executive Directors, their independence to the
Company, the Nomination Committee will make recommendations to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of two (2) independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Yougen and Mr. Mao Ning, and one (1)
non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Xie Chenguang. Mr. Xie Chenguang
currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, among other
things, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company's corporate strategies.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee held
one (1) meeting. During the said meeting, the Nomination Committee has
mainly performed the following duties:

. reviewed the annual confirmations of independence submitted
by the independent non-executive Directors and assessed their
independence;

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board during

the reporting period and whether the composition of the Board
complied with the requirements of the Board Diversity Policy; and

. reviewed the background of the retiring Directors and determined
whether the retiring Directors continues to meet the criteria to be
re-elected at the forthcoming AGM, and made recommendations to
the Board on the re-election of retiring Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 15 October
2019 with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated with the authority from
the Board to establish, review, and make recommendations to the
Board on the Group's remuneration policy and practices and reviewing
and approving matters relating to the Share Option Scheme. The
Remuneration Committee ensures that all employees and Directors are
appropriately remunerated in accordance with the Group's strategy as
wellas its long-term and short-term performance.

The Remuneration Committee consists of two (2) independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Yougen and Mr. Mao Ning, and one
(1) non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Xie Chenguang. Mr. Mao Ning
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among other
things, making recommendations to the Board on the Group's policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy and on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for assessing the performance of the
Directors and approving the terms of their service contracts.
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The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, allowances
and benefits in kind,performance-related bonuses, pension scheme
contributions and social welfare) payable to the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB2.8 million (2021:
approximately RMB3.5 million). The remuneration of the Directors is
determined with reference to the salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and performance
of the Group.

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the Company's senior management (non-director and
non-chief executive) by band for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set
out below:
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EREIEBAY
2021
Remuneration band FeNEEE 20214
HKS1 to HKS1,000,000 1787551,000,00078 7T 3 2
HKS$1,000,001 to HKS1,500,000 1,000,001 5% 1,500,00078 75 1 2

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the five individuals with
the highest emoluments in the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set outin notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration Committee
held two (2) meetings. During the said meetings, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed the Group's remuneration policy and reviewed
the remuneration package of the executive Directors and senior
management for the reporting period.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors had received
during the year ended 31 December 2022 comprehensive, formal
and tailored training, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the Group structure, the Board and Board Committee
meetings procedures, and the Group's business, management and
operations etc., and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and applicable regulatory
requirements.
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The table below summarises the participation of each of the Directors
in continuous professional development during the year ended 31

December 2022:

TREGAEE2022F12831HEFESES
2MFBEXERNBR

Reading Legal
and Regulatory

Updates and
Attending  other Reference
Training Courses Materials
B EER
BEERWERRK
Name of Director BEENY HEE IR H2E i
Non-executive Directors FEHITEE
XIE Chenguang Eil=r v v
HUANG Qingping =HAT v v
MA Baohua BIRE v v
ZHU Li ey v v
Executive Directors HITEE
LI Chunling =EHB v/ v
HUANG Xuemei =1 v v
Independent non-executive Directors BUIFHITEE
CHOW Siu Hang AIKIE v/ v
Ll Yougen FRIR v 4
MAO Ning FE v v

Besides, the Company will keep providing information and materials
to develop and update the Directors' knowledge and skills as and
when appropriate. Such information and materials are relevant to
the Group's business, corporate governance, rules and regulations,
accounting, financial or professional skills and/or directors’ duties and
responsibilities. There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing professional development to each Director. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company's
expense. The company secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping records of training taken by each Director.

BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Pursuant to the code provision C.5.3 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and the Board meetings should be held at least four
times a year for reviewing and approving financial statements, operating
performance, budgets, rules and regulations, announcements and
circulars issued by the Company and considering and approving the
progress of the Company's various on-going projects, and the overall
strategies and policies. Additional meetings would be arranged if and
when required.
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Annual meeting schedules of each meeting of the Board and for the Audit
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%%%’ﬁ%&gﬁéé T RBHEE D F

Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee ZEE@EZME2FEDHFIRIBMHEESHE
are made available to the Directors in advance. At least 14 days' notice & o & E’ﬁ%% ZERER IR AKRIBEH

should be given for a regular Board meeting. For other Board meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given. The Board members are provided
with all agenda and adequate information for their review before the
meetings. The Board and the Board Committee members are provided
with comprehensive meeting papers and relevant materials within a
reasonable period of time, usually not less than 3 days, in advance of the
intended meeting date. All Directors and the Board Committee members
are given opportunities to include matters in the agenda for regular
Board and Board Committee meetings and/or their meetings, if required.
To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors and the Board
Committee members are free to have access to the management for
enquiries and to obtain further information, when required.

The Directors and Board Committee members may participate in the
meeting either in person or through electronic means of communications.
The Directors and Board Committee members are free to contribute and
share their views at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after
deliberation at meetings. The Directors and Board Committee members
who are considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in
the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be counted
in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, four (4) Board meetings were
held, to consider and approve, among other things, the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2022. The individual attendance
records of each Director at such Board meetings and other meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:
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Attendance record of Directors at the Board meetings and other meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2022
BEANF12ANALFERESNMETESEERRAMERNNRLR

Audit Nomination Remuneration Chairman and
Committee Committee Committee General INED
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
*ER
i%.LiFiﬂﬁ
Name of Director EE% 3293 BRZEe9: ReZ898E HHZEE93E REAE Exe3
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
HUANG Qingping EET il NIA B NIA TR NIA TR 171 NIATER
XIE Chenguang HHEN 4l4 313 1N 22 mn 1
MA Baohua ERE 4lh NIATER NATEHE NATEA 17 NIAREBR
ZHULI KN 4fk N/ARER N/ATER N/ARER n N/AR B
Executive Directors HiTEE
LI Chunling S5 il NIA B NIATER NIA TR 171 NIATER
HUANG Xuemei ETiE 4fk N/ARER N/ATER N/ARER n N/AR B
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BLHH/7EE
CHOW Siu Hang B il 33 NIA TR NIA TR 171 "
LI Yougen FRR 4l4 NATER n 22 7n 17
MAONing FE 4l4 313 mn 22 n mn
SR ERIE B IR AT
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After the meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors and
Board Committee members for comments. Apart from the said meetings,
matters requiring the Board's approval may be arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions to all Board members.

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions
were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings, Board
Committee meetings and written resolutions are kept by the company
secretary of the Company and are available for inspection by the
Directors at all times.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the Company's
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management,
the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code and
written employee guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Ms. Tsang Qi Yin as the company secretary
of the Company from an external service provider on 26 November 2022.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the company secretary of
the Company had taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training. Her primary contact person at the Company is Ms. Katty Cheung,
the Senior Manager of Investor Relations of the Company.

The Company Secretary, is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and ensuring that the Board's policy and
procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that the Board's procedures and all applicable
laws are followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating communications among Directors as well as with
management.

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may have affected the Group's business, including those changes to
relevant rules and regulations, and are able to make further enquiries
when necessary. Sufficient explanation and information have been
provided to the Board by the management to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before it for
approval. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

REZk 2REFhEFZETUENTE
BERHERCHRERBURERER  HIEER-
frLiERiN REEFTHEZSETE
BEEREZRSANEREFTTNEMER
BRI o

REFEERREFZETER LUKRNUE
HRBRFMETZAMASHHERR AR
BAARINEEEREESREERNESTEE
ZEHR TR REMRRE  LHEE
EHERER -

EEERREE
EXCEEROTEEFEATHTRXYE
A2 MFFREBIIEE - EF S B A QT E
FEABRABR EShkaMEEENE
HIRFEBERLR AN ETERRER
RENBRRER RETUAREERET
SINETER URARBEBTFTEEERT
AREATEERRETRENBEI

NEWE

RABBERN2022F118526H BN ARFS HLFE
BEEBBELIAETRBNATNE &
E2022F 12831 BLEFE > KRB REWE
BEREZADORISE/NRFREREREE - H
RERBNEBBEA TR ERETREER
FREREERERAL L

NEMEEERCEXELRFTENEFTTIR
TREZ THREBRESFINBRRRERF
BRZE -RAURER-PRAEEEAER

NEMRBEMERHVER KRS  BRE
EEREFRAEEREZREGLUERE UL
FRRNEEEREESFTKEEEZRHNE
\@O

PREEFHBERER T EXEREBRN
EREE QEHAEAIRKEENERE
8 WAEELBRFEHE DL 5
BEREFTTRHUHADNBRERER  EE
EERLUMERGRENUHBREAMER
PREH AT AR IRBVET(E - WF IR AT EIR
I EEA B E VR B R AR

EFMMBHRRARENEE

EERIBEREAREEHE2022F12831H
IFEENRHBRR ST



The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group's state
of affairs and of the results and cash flow during the reporting period.
A statement from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 90 to 91 of this annual report. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in the Model Code as the code
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the Securities Dealing Code during the year ended 31
December 2022.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code was noted
by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has the responsibility to ensure that the
Company establishes and maintains sound risk management and internal
control systems within the Group and to review the effectiveness of the
systems.

Such systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks inherent in the
Group's business to an acceptable level, but not eliminating the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility to
oversee the Group's risk management and internal control systems on an
on-going basis and to review the effectiveness of the systems annually.
The review covers all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls. Under the Group's risk management and
internal control structure, the management is responsible for the design,
implementation and maintenance of risk management and internal
control systems to ensure that, among others, (i) appropriate policies
and control procedures have been designed and established to safeguard
the Group's assets against improper use or disposal; (ii) relevant laws,
rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with; and (iii) reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements.

The Company has an internal audit function which aims at helping
the Company to accomplish its objectives by applying a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems.
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The Group's internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department's business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department'’s business and implementation
of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company has adopted
the Inside Information Policy which governs the disclosure of inside
information and strictly prohibit unauthorised use of inside information
and has communicated that to all relevant staff. The Board is aware of its
obligations to announce any inside information in accordance with the
Listing Rules and conducts the affairs with reference to the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission in June 2012. In addition, only the Directors and delegated
officers can act as the Group's spokesperson and respond to external
enquiries about the Group's affairs. No incident of non-compliance of
the procedure, and internal controls in the Inside Information Policy was
noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management
systems to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated
by the management in compliance with the agreed procedures and
standards. The review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, risk management functions
as well as environmental and social performance and reporting. For
details of the environmental and social performance, please refer to the
2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.
In particular, the Board considered the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The review was made by having discussions with the Company's
management and its external internal control consultant and the
assessment conducted by the Board. The Board believes that the existing
internal control system is adequate and effective, in particular, for
financial reporting and Listing Rule's compliance.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders' interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals

Pursuant to the Articles, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call for
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more members of the
Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the Company's paid up capital carrying the right of voting at
Company's general meetings (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)") shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
("EGM") to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene a physical
meeting at only one location which will be the Principal Meeting Place
(as defined in Articles 65), the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose
of making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit
a written requisition (the "Requisition”) signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Suite F, 14/F, Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the company secretary of
the Company.

The Requisition must state clearly the name, the contact information of
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, the reason(s) for convening an
EGM, the agenda proposed to be included, the details of the business(es)
proposed to be transacted in the EGM, and signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned. The Eligible Shareholder(s) must prove
his/her/their shareholding in the Company to the satisfaction of the
Company.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and the
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder will be verified by the
Company's Hong Kong share registrar. If the Requisition is found to be
proper and in order, the company secretary of the Company will ask the
Board to convene an EGM within 2 months and/or include the proposal
or the resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder at the EGM after
the deposit of the Requisition. On the contrary, if the Requisition has
been verified as not in order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will
be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call for
an EGM and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed by the
Eligible Shareholder at the EGM.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the Company's website.
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The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing to its principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Suite F, 14/F, Neich Tower, 128 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or
such other means of contact as set out in the Company's website from
time to time.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address, and provide the Company with
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. The Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with its
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors'
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. The chairman of the Board, the chairman of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet with the Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

Based on the above, the Board was of the view that the shareholders’
communication policy maintained by the Company was effective during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a dividend policy in effect. The Dividend Policy sets
out the factors that the Board will take into account in deciding the
declaration of interim dividends, special dividends and final dividends.
The Dividend Policy aims at enhancing transparency of the Company and
facilitating the Shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions relating to the Company.

The Company does not have a fixed dividend pay-out ratio. The
declaration of dividends shall be subject to the discretion of the Board
and the approval of the Shareholders. The dividend that the Directors
may recommend or declare in respect of any particular financial year or
period will be subject to the Group's operations and earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and future
development requirements, shareholders' interests and other factors
which the Directors may deem relevant at such time. Any declaration
and payment as well as the amount of the dividends will be subject to
the Company's constitutional documents and the relevant laws in the
Cayman Islands, including the approval of the Shareholders.
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Any dividends declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to the
Company's shares on a per share basis, and the Company will pay such
dividends in Hong Kong dollars.

Any distributable profits that are not distributed in any given year will be
retained and available for distribution in subsequent years. To the extent
profits are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be
available to be reinvested in the Group's operations.

No arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends was made by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A special resolution to adopt the amended Articles was passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 1 June 2022. The Articles were amended for the
purposes of, among others, (i) allowing general meetings to be held as
an electronic meeting (also referred to as virtual general meeting) or a
hybrid meeting; (i) bringing the Articles in line with amendments made
to the Listing Rules and applicable laws and procedures of the Cayman
Islands; and (iii) making certain minor housekeeping amendments. For
further details, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 29 April
2022 and the announcements of the Company dated 11 April 2022 and 1
June 2022.

A copy of the second amended Memorandum and Articles of Association is
posted on the designated website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the website of the Company (www.yinchenglife.hk).

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the Articles during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

On behalf of the Board
Xie Chenguang
Chairman and non-executive Director
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Shares were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 6 November 2019. The
Company and its subsidiaries now comprising the Group underwent
the Reorganisation (as defined in the Prospectus) as set out in the
Prospectus. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group were involved in the provision of property
management services and value-added services.

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. A review
and analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended 31 December
2022, a discussion on the Group's future business development and
prospect, and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group faces are set out in the "Chairman’s Statement”, the
“President’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
sections in this annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed
“Directors’ Report - Subsequent Events" in this annual report, the
Company has no significant event after the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

For details of the financial risks and the related risk management policies
and practices used by the Company, please refer to note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of this annual report. A financial and business summary of the
Group for the five years ended 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021
and 2022, respectively, have been set out on pages 8 to 10 in this annual
report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group did not perform any material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and associates.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Directors are not aware of any material events undertaken by the
Group subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group's properties held for investment purpose is set
out on page 197 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2022 in
the Company's share capital are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the amounts and movements in the Company's reserves are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders with an aggregate amount approximately
RMB246.7 million (2021: approximately RMB150.9 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue derived from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers was less
than 30% of the Group's total revenue for the year, and accounted for
approximately 1.5% and 5.4% (2021: approximately 5.9% and 10.6%) of
the Group's total revenue for the year, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, purchases from the Group's
largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
38.5% and 55.1% (2021: approximately 39.7% and 58.9%) of the Group's
total purchases for the year, respectively.

At no time during the year under review, that any of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the best knowledge of
the Directors who owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital), has any interest in any of the above five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group for the year.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals. The Company
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Company and its employees, suppliers,
customers and/or other stakeholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance practices as adopted by
the Company are set out in the section headed "Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 49 to 63 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the applicable
environmental laws as well as protecting the environment by minimising
the negative impact of the Group's existing business activities on the
environment and complying with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions as set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the
environmental, social and governance report which will be available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. To
the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, the Directors are not aware of any non-
compliance in any material respect with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group's business and operations for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Details of the Company's compliance with the code provisions in the CG
Code are set out in the corporate governance report of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Non-executive Directors
XIE Chenguang (Chairman)
HUANG Qingping

MA Baohua

ZHU Li

Executive Directors

LI Chunling
HUANG Xuemei

Independent non-executive Directors
CHOW Siu Hang

LI Yougen
MAO Ning
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In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Pursuant
to Article 108(a) of the Articles, three of the Directors will retire from the
office of Director and shall, being eligible for re-election at the AGM, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of all the Directors and the Company's senior
management are set out on pages 44 to 48 in this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each independent non-executive
Director, a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors as independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has renewed a service contract, and
each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has renewed an appointment letter, with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 26 August 2022, which may be
terminated by (i) not less than three months' notice in writing served by
either the executive Director or the Company; or (ii) not less than two
months' notice in writing served by either the non-executive Director, the
independent non-executive Director or the Company.

Pursuant to the individual service contracts or, as the case may be,
appointment letters, each of the executive Directors and the non-
executive Directors is entitled to a fixed amount of emolument and
discretionary bonus to be determined by the Board. For the independent
non-executive Directors, pursuant to the then individual appointment
letters, each of them is entitled to a fixed director's fee.

All of the executive Directors' service contracts and the non-executive
Director's and independent non-executive Director's letters of
appointment entered into between the Company and the respective
Director have been reviewed and ratified by the Nomination Committee.
None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 9,166 employees (2021:
6,930 employees). The emolument policy of the Group's employees
is formulated by the Remuneration Committee based on their merit,
qualifications and competence. It is the Group's policy to compensate
each employee fairly and equitably. The Group has a system for
measuring employees' performance against agreed-upon goals with
specific performance standards. Performance discussion is carried out
on an ongoing basis and a formal evaluation is conducted at least once a
year to review employees' overall performance, achievements, and areas
in need of improvement. Salary review will be based on both the Group's
performance and individual performance and subject to the Group's
discretion.

The Group enter into labour contracts with all of its employees. The
Group offer to its employees competitive remuneration packages that
include fees, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind, bonuses and
pension scheme contribution, equity-settled and share option scheme
and social welfare.

The emoluments of the Directors are generally decided by the
Remuneration Committee and then recommended to the Board, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. All the emoluments of Directors have been
reviewed and approved or ratified by the Remuneration Committee.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022, no amount was paid
to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals, as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group. In addition, no compensation was paid to
the Directors or past Directors for the same period in connection with
the loss of office as a director of any member of the Group or of any other
office in connection with the management of the affairs of any member of
the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 January 2021, a share option scheme with terms complying with
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules was conditionally approved and adopted
by the then shareholders of the Company. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to incentivise and reward participants of the Share
Option Scheme who have contributed to the Group, and encourage
such participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a
whole. The participants of the Share Option Scheme are the directors and
employees of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group. Details of the principal
terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular issued by
the Company on 6 January 2021 and note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.
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The number of share options available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme was 3,743,040 and 2,143,040 share options as of 1 January
2022 and 31 December 2022, respectively. The total number of shares
of the Company that could be issued upon exercise of (i) all outstanding
share options and (ii) all share options that could be granted under
the then available scheme mandate limit as at 31 December 2022 was
3,200,000 shares and 2,143,040 shares respectively, which represented
approximately 1.20% and 0.80% of the number of issued shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2022, respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, there were a total of 3,200,000 outstanding
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme. Details of
movements during the year ended 31 December 2022 of share options
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granted under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: et SEFFIBEWNT :
Number of share options
fEREHE
Closing price
immediately
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding before the
as of Granted Exercised Lapsed asat date of grant
Name or category Exercise 1January  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December Exercise of share
of participant Date of grant "= period 2022 period period period 2022 price options
20225 ES st
BEW2E B 12A318 fElktE
2aEMY 1818 [B5:3 - VAN oF S5i:d =G
HER R a0 ;i WA HRERE BRETR FSd fiE E  HKHE
Directors
B2
Li Chunling 18 May 2021 5years from the date 320,000 - - - 320,000 4722 4,690
FER 2021458188 of grant
et Lo g
14 April 2022 14 April 2023 - - 100,000 - - 100,000 3.300 3300
2022545148 13 April 2027
WBELA1LAE
2027%4B138
T4 April 2024 - - 100,000 - - 100,000 3.300 3.300
13 April 2027
26FLA1LAE
2027%4B138
T4 April 2025 - - 100,000 - - 100,000 3.300 3300
13 April 2027
2025F4B14HE
202748138
Huang Xuemei 18 May 2021 5years from the date 160,000 - - - 160,000 4722 4,690
e 2021458188 of grant
B B E
14 April 2022 14 April 2023 - - 46,000 - - 46,000 3.300 3300
2022548148 13 April 2027
NBFELA1LEE
2027%4B138
14 April 2024 - - 46,000 - - 46,000 3.300 3300
13 April 2027
2026ELA140E
2027%4B138
T4 April 2025 - - 48,000 - - 48,000 3.300 3.300
13 April 2027
2025F4R14AE
2027548138
Sub-total 480,000 440,000 - - 920,000
gt
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EFERS
Number of share options
BREHE
Closing price
immediately
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding before the
as of Granted Exercised Lapsed asat date of grant
Name or category Exercise 1January  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December Exercise of share
of participant Date of grant "t period 2022 period period period 2022Vt price options
1R20226 iR
BEW2E MR 128318 fkiE
SaENY 1818 g/ HKTE AA]
4R Rt pRr=w e HATE HAERE HRET PS st (3 G
Other employees and officers
HitEERSHRAR
14 granteesinaggregate 18 May 2021 5years from the date 1,120,000 - - - 1,120,000 4,722 4.690
BHUZERA 2021558188 of grant
BRI BHEHS F
18granteesinaggregate 14 April 2022 14 April 2023 - - 374,000 - - 374,000 3.300 3.300
BHIBBAHEA 2022£4B148 13 April 2027
WBEFELALBE
2027548138
T4 April 2024 - - 374,000 - - 374,000 3.300 3.300
13 April 2027
W24FLRILAE
2027548138
14 April 2025 - - 412,000 - - 412,000 3.300 3.300
13 April 2027
2025F4B140E
20271448138
Sub-total 1,120,000 1,160,000 - - 2,280,000
It
Total 1,600,000 1,600,000 - - 3,200,000
st
Notes: PEE -

(1) The share options were accepted by participants in a period after the date of (1)
grant.

(2)  There is no vesting period of share options for the share options granted on 18 (2)
May 2021.

(3)  The vesting and validity period of the share options granted on 14 April 2022 are (3)
as follows:

(a) 520,000 share options are vested and exercisable from 14 April 2023 to 13
April 2027;

(b) 520,000 share options are vested and exercisable from 14 April 2024 to 13
April 2027;

(c) 560,000 share options are vested and exercisable from 14 April 2025 to 13
April 2027;
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The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
December 2022 was RMB1,646,000, and was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomal model with the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted taken into account. For further details, please
refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of 1,600,000 share
options were granted to the Directors and other employees and officers
of the Company (collectively, the "Grantees"). There is no clawback
mechanism nor performance targets attached to the share options
granted to the Grantees. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to reward and acknowledge grantees who had contributed to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme also provides the grantees with an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
(i) motivate the grantees to optimise their performance for the benefit
of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going
business relationship with the grantees whose contributions are or will
be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group. Having considered
that (i) the Grantees are employees and/or Directors of the Group who
will contribute directly to the overall business performance, sustainable
development and/or good corporate governance of the Group; (i) the
grant of share options to the Grantees is a recognition for their past
contributions to the Group; and (iii) the share options are subject to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme which provides for circumstances
under which the share options or any part thereof shall lapse in the
event that the Grantees cease to be an employee of the Group or commit
a breach of the rules of the Share Option Scheme, the Remuneration
Committee and the Board consider that without additional clawback
mechanism or performance targets, the grant of the share options could
align the interests of the Grantees with that of the Company and the
Shareholders, reward and provide incentive to the Grantees to work
towards the success of the Group, and reinforce their commitment to
long-term services of the Group, which is in line with the purpose of the
Share Option Scheme.

No share options granted under the Share Option Scheme were
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company's subsidiaries, or their respective associates
had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Huang Qingping, Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Wutong
Holding Limited (collectively, the "Controlling Shareholders”), have
confirmed to the Company of their compliance with the non-competition
undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
entered into among the Controlling Shareholders and the Company dated
21 October 2019 during the period under review. Details of such deed
of non-competition are set out in the section headed "Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders"” in the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under such
deed of non-competition have been complied with by the Controlling
Shareholders during the period under review.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment,
no contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the Company’s business were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE FOR PROVISION OF
SERVICES

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions"” in this report and in note 36 to
the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report, there
was no contract of significance for the provision of services to the Group
by any Controlling Shareholder or substantial Shareholder or any of the
subsidiaries or companies controlled by any Controlling Shareholder or
substantial Shareholder, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transaction”
and "Continuing Connected Transactions"” in this report and in note 36 to
the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report, there
was no transaction, arrangement, or contract of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which
any Director or any entities connected with a Director, the Controlling
Shareholders, the substantial Shareholders had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Company'’s chief executive in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of SFO) which were (a) required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO; (b) recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (c) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard dealings by directors of listed issuer as
referred to in the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in the Shares or Underlying Shares of the Company

B2 B BR 17 S AE AR 17 B #E it
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Number percentage of
of Shares/ shareholding
underlying interest in the

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held Mot ? Comp pany
) ) PRSI MBI RAARRE
EFUS EEtE ie{n g g M ARSI
Mr. Huang Qingping Interest in controlled corporation (Nete? 102,569,680 (L) 38.39%
EETRE S B 2 O
Mr. Xie Chenguang Interest in controlled corporation Mt¢?) 11,829,600 (L) 4.43%
BRNFE S E i
Mr. Li Chunling Beneficial owner 1,054,000 (L) 0.39%
EEIS LA BEUA A (Note 4) (Ffz£4)
Interest in controlled corporation (Nete 5,343,040 (L) 2.00%
B A B
Ms. Huang Xuemei Beneficial owner 330,000 (L) 0.12%
ﬁfﬁmﬁ Eﬁﬁ (Note 6) (HftzE6)
Interest in controlled corporation tNete? 1,495,760 (L) 0.56%
S )
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Notes:
1. The letter "L denotes a long position in the Shares held.

2. Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Huang
Holding Limited and Silver Wutong Holding Limited, respectively. As such, Mr.
Huang Qingping is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by
Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Wutong Holding Limited.

3. Mr. Xie Chenguang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xie Holding
Limited. As such, Mr. Xie Chenguang is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
the Shares held by Silver Xie Holding Limited.

4. Mr. Li Chunling had 620,000 share options under the Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2022, details of which are set out in the section headed "Share
Option Scheme" in this Directors' Report.

5. Mr. Li Chunling is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Chunling
Holding Limited. As such, Mr. Li Chunling is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the Shares held by Silver Chunling Holding Limited.

6. Ms. Huang Xuemei had 300,000 share options under the Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2022, details of which are set out in the section headed "Share
Option Scheme" in this Directors’ Report.

7. Ms. Huang Xuemei is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xuemei
Holding Limited. As such, Ms. Huang Xuemei is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the Shares held by Silver Xuemei Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or the Company's chief
executive nor their associates had an interest or short position in any
shares or underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or that was required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which are
required to be natified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow
Subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangement
which would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or the Company's chief executive, as
at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the Directors or
the Company's chief executive whose interests are disclosed under the
paragraph headed "Directors' and Chief Executive's Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
and its Associated Corporations” above) had an interest or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to

ERRRN RN KRR =

BEAEERAATEEBTHAEMM P
2022€F128B31H U TFALT (REXTEER

ETHRAEREAATREEEEBRM
RO R ERENEG R XA —RINE
MNESHUAATEETHAEEERIN
D EABRE IR (D R A BN A AT IREE
H R EAEEBIE33615BE BN B LMY

be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO: mERA
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Number of interest in the
Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares held (Note" Company
FRiFRR 1% iR NI
ERRERBIE EEE = BMABESL
Silver Huang Holding Limited Nete?) Beneficial owner 96,120,000 (L) 35.98%
Silver Huang Holding Limited ®2) Bm#EA A
BN ERBEEREREBRAT Interest in controlled corporation 53,430,400 (L) 20.00%
Jiangsu Ruihua Investment Holding Group = #AE#m
Company Ltd.*
Hongkong Ruihua Investment Beneficial owner 53,430,400 (L) 20.00%
Management Limited
BERREREERFRAE BEmEAA
Mr. Zhang Jianbin (Nete3) Interest in controlled corporation 53,430,400 (L) 20.00%
SRR 5 & ) REEEED
Silver Zhu Holding Limited MNete®) Beneficial owner 18,880,000 (L) 7.07%
Silver Zhu Holding Limited ®#4) EREAA
Mr. Zhu Linnan (Note4) Interest in controlled corporation 18,880,000 (L) 7.07%
R ST A4 ) REEEED
First Beijing Investment Limited Beneficial owner 14,868,000 (L) 5.57%

F—IREEERRE BEnEAA

Notes: BdsE -

1, The letter "L" denotes a long position in the Shares held. 1. FLFEPRRIR D BVEF & o

2. Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and the sole shareholder of each of Silver 2. =BT EASilver Huang Holding Limitedfy i

—EERME-RE EHIL REESRBER
Bl > 1R 2 52 Silver Huang Holding Limited$ 55
B2 BRI IR R ©

Huang Holding Limited and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Silver Huang Holding Limited under the SFO.

SRINAE SERIEAIRAR
WNEERS
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3. Mr. Zhang Jianbin holds 98.82% equity interest in Jiangsu Ruihua Investment
Holding Group Company Ltd.* which in turn holds the entire issued share capital
of Hongkong Ruihua Investment Management Limited. Mr. Zhang Jianbin is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Hongkong Ruihua
Investment Management Limited under the SFO.

4. Mr. Zhu Linnan is the sole director and the sole shareholder of Silver Zhu Holding
Limited and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Silver Zhu Holding Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were not
aware of any other person who had or deemed to have an interest or short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which was disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws, the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the Company's
assets from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their executors
or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty. Such
provision shall be in force from the Listing Date.

COMPETING INTEREST

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Interests of Controlling
Shareholders and their Close Associates in Other Businesses” in the
section headed "Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus, during the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or the Controlling Shareholders or their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is interested in any business which competes
or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company's business
nor any conflict of interests which has or may have with the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had interest-bearing borrowings
of RMB118.5 million, as compared with RMB209.0 million as at 31
December 2021. The Group's borrowings are mainly denominated in
RMB.

The details are set out in "Management Discussion and Analysis -
Borrowings" in this annual report.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'S SECURITIES AND
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under section headed “Share Option Scheme"” in this
Directors' Report, at no time during the year end 31 December 2022 was
the Company, any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or the Company's chief executive or their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) which has any right to subscribe for the
Company's securities or any of its associated corporations as defined
in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. No equity-
linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report,
the Company has maintained sufficient prescribed public float of not less
than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules from
the period from the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing different aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board Committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which have been posted on the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website (www.yinchenglife.hk).

All Board Committees should report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations made. All Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company's expense.
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ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
GLOBAL OFFERING

In connection with the Listing, on 6 November 2019, 66,680,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of
HK$2.18 per Share and 199,990,000 new Shares were issued pursuant
to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the Prospectus). The total net
proceeds raised from the Global Offering (including the issuance of
Shares pursuant to the partial exercise of the Qver-allotment Option),
after deducting the underwriting fees and commissions and other
expenses in connection with the Global Offering, was approximately
HKS131.4 million.

Details of the use of proceeds by the Group are set out in "Management
Discussion and Analysis - Use of Proceeds from the Listing and Change in
Use of Proceeds" in this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Yincheng International is owned as to approximately 37.26% by Mr.
Huang Qingping (being one of the Controlling Shareholders and a non-
executive Director) as at 31 December 2022. Yincheng International
is thus an associate of Mr. Huang Qingping and therefore a connected
person of the Company.

Yincheng Real Estate is owned as to approximately 53.11% by Mr. Huang
Qingping (being one of the Controlling Shareholders and a non-executive
Director) as at 31 December 2022. Yincheng Real Estate is thus an
associate of Mr. Huang Qingping and therefore a connected person of the
Company.

Save as disclosed below and in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into the following transactions during the years
ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 which constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and had on the dates
indicated in the table below entered into written agreements with the
relevant party to govern such continuing connected transactions:
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RHEMER S

B E20205F~20215F %20226F128318 L4
B> AEBBFIIIUTRS  HRE LR
AR BRI 5 > WS T RPIR HH A
BRAALII U EEMZENEEZSRHERE
X5

Transaction amount for
Description of continuing the year ended
No. Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement connected transactions Term Annual cap 31 December 2022
#EW2F
12A318 1t
&% hE =L [EFAEY FEMERS 2 HAR FEELMR EEZRHEH
1. The PRC Trademark TJune 2019 (1) VYicheng Property Yincheng Real Estate agreed to grant ~ From 1June 2019 to N/A. On royalty-free basis. N/A. On royalty-free basis.
Licensing Agreement 20196818 Services; and Yincheng Property Services a 26 July 2023 TER-RENRTEERELE. TER RENETEE
HEBEERFIAR (2)  Yincheng Real Estate non-transferable licence tousea  B2019F6A1HE E%o
(1) SBEMERS, & registered trademarkin the PRC WBETRAA
() sBEE REMERERTRINERS
Tl @ENF )RR ER
=MEE
2. The Deed of HongKong 26 June 2019 (1) The Company; and Yincheng Real Estate agreed to From26June2019to  N/A. Onroyalty-free basis. N/A. On royalty-free basis.
Trademark Licensing 2019568268 (2)  VYincheng Real Estate irrevocably grant the Group a expiryof trademark ~ FBR-REMFFREREE .  TBRE -REMEEE
EEBREATIRE (1) #2385k non-transferrable and non- registration %o
() sEnE exclusive licence to use a B2019E6826HE
registered trademark in BREMERE S
Hong Kong
REMERSTTHENR
FERRUATEERER
fsreD WEEEERERER
3 2022 Master Community 11 November2021 (1) the Company (foritself ~ The Group agreed to provide repair ~ From 1 January2022to Will not exceed RMB11.3 million,  Approximately RMB0.7
Repairand Maintenance 2021118118 and on behalf of its and maintenance services to 31 December 2024 RMB12.2 millionand RMBT1.5  million
Services Agreement subsidiaries); and properties previously developed ~ 2022F181HE2024E  millionforeachofthethree  AARM0IEET
WEHBEERRER (2)  Yincheng Real Estate by the Yincheng Real Estate Group 128318 years ending 31 December
BlahE (foritselfand on behalf ~ which have been subject to wear 2024, respectively
of its subsidiaries) and tear throughout the years HE0UENBNBL=AEE
() 28 REAGRA FEEFERHRRNMEEELH ZERDHTEBBARY
RENBRE) ; & HENBREAERNYEREY N3EED ARB12288
() BEHE BEAER  HEREERS TRARBISEET
ARHEMBEAE)
SR ERBAERAT

WNEERS
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Transaction amount for
Description of continuing the year ended
No. Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement connected transactions Term Annual cap 31 December 2022
HEA2E
12R318 1L
B 3 iRk [ RAIE] HEMERR M BB FELR FEZRAEE
[3 2022 First Master 11 November2021 (1) the Company (foritself  The Group shall provide the following  From 1January2022to  Willnot exceed RMB24.8 million,  Approximately RMB23.4
Property Management 2021118118 and on behalf of its property services to the Yincheng 31 December 2024 RMB26.8 millionand RMB26.8  million
Agreement subsidiaries); and Real Estate Group: W2FIFIEEWUE  milionforeachof thethree  HIARBBLEET
WFEE—HEEEE (2)  VinchengRealEstate (i)  property management 128318 years ending 31 December
thig (foritself and on behalf services, including but not 2024, respectively
of its subsidiaries) limited to cleaning, gardening, HENUENRNBIL=AEE
(1) &3R8 REEFRA waste disposal, parking, traffic BERDIFERBARE
REMBAT) ;& and security management VR EEVRYNGEIEES
(2) HREHEGBERIR services; TRAREWSEET
REEMBAR) (i) professional services,
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including but not limited
to facility installation,
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services; and
(iii)  value-added services,
including but not limited to
community value-added
services, consultation services
for unsold property units,
and other referral and agency
services.
FEERMRIHEEERMEUT
NERE
() MEEBRH aFEFRR
BREE BMEEFE
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FELR

EFERS

Transaction amount for
the year ended

31 December 2022
HE02E
1283181k
FEZRAEH

2022 Second Master
Property Management
Agreement
NOEE—HNEEE
wihE

11 November 2021
W1E1ENH

(

)

the Company (for itself
and on behalf of its
subsidiaries); and
Yincheng International
(foritself and on behalf
ofits subsidiaries)
KAE (BEASRA
REMBAR) ; &
REER (BEAGR
RREMBAE)

The Group shall provide the following  From 1 January 2022 to

i

(ii)

(i)

FEEEARIEREBREAT

property services to the

Yincheng International Group:

property management
services, including but not

limited to cleaning, gardening,
waste disposal, parking, traffic

and security management
services;

professional services,
including but not limited
to facility installation,

maintenance and renovation

services; and
value-added services,

including but not limited to

community value-added

services, consultation services

forunsold property units,

and other referral and agency

services.

UES SN

(i)

(ii)

(i)

NEEERY QRETER
BREZ EMEE FE

RERZEEERE,

B2RE SREFRIRE
R

Z& RERENRE

ERE SEEFRIE
SRR REME B
ARBUREMBNRAE

MR

002F1B1HE0E

Will not exceed RMB126.9
million, RMB151.8 million and
RMB148.5 million for each
of the three years ending 31
December 2024, respectively

BEUFNAIBL=AFE

EERDRTERBARK
1269587 ARH15188
EnRAREILSEET

Approximately RMB85.6
million
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Compliance with the Listing Rules:

1.

The PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement

As the right to use the licenced trademarks is granted to the Group
on a royalty-free basis, the transaction under the PRC Trademark
Licensing Agreement falls within the de minimus threshold
provided under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Deed of Hong Kong Trademark Licensing

As the right to use the licenced trademarks is granted to the Group
on a royalty-free basis, the transaction under the Deed of Hong
Kong Trademark Licensing falls within the de minimus threshold
provided under Rule T4A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

2022 Master Community Repair and Maintenance Services
Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) calculated
with reference to the highest proposed annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master Community
Repair and Maintenance Services Agreement exceed 0.1% but are
less than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master
Community Repair and Maintenance Services Agreement is subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempt from circular (including independent financial advice)
and Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
Rules 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

2022 First Master Property Management Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) calculated
with reference to the highest proposed annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 First Master Property
Management Agreement exceed 0.1% but are all less than 5%, the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 First Master Property
Management Agreement is subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements but exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and Independent
Shareholders' approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of
the Listing Rules.
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5. 2022 Second Master Property Management Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s)
calculated with reference to the highest proposed annual cap
for the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Second
Master Property Management Agreement exceed 5%, the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 Second Master
Property Management Agreement is subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular, independent financial advice, Independent
Shareholders' approval and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For further details of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions, please refer to the section headed “"Continuing Connected
Transactions" in the Prospectus and the Company’s announcement dated
11 November 2021.

The continuing connected transactions (except for the granting of
trademark licence under the PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement and
the Deed of Hong Kong Trademark Licensing) as mentioned above
also constitute related party transactions of the Company under the
IFRS(s), details of which are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report. Save for the transactions
disclosed above, the other related party transactions as set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transaction which require
announcement, annual review and independent shareholders' approval
under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule T4A.55 of the Listing Rules, all the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that they have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor's letter on the continuing connected transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 have been audited by Ernst & Young, the auditor of the Company,
who will retire at the conclusion of the AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM will be held on Thursday, 1 June 2023, the notice of which will
be published and dispatched to the Shareholders as soon as practicable
in accordance with the Articles and the Listing Rules.

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
period from Monday, 29 May 2023 to Thursday, 1 June 2023, both days
inclusive and during which period no share transfer will be effected, for
the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders' entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company's share registrar, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on
Friday, 26 May 2023.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this annual report.

By order of the Board
Xie Chenguang
Chairman

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT

ACTIVE COMMUNICATION TO INCREASE MARKET
RECOGNITION

The Company attached great importance to communications with its
shareholders, investors, financial institutions, the media and the public
in order to establish a more efficient communication channel between
the Company and the capital market. The Company believes that
effective investor relations will help reduce financial costs and improve
the liquidity of its shares, leading to a more solid shareholder base. The
Company therefore undertakes to maintain high transparency and to
release the financial and operation conditions and the latest news to
the market promptly and accurately in compliance with the principle
of having "accurate, timely, and transparent” information disclosure.
The Company strives to ensure that the market would have a deep
understanding of the Company and maintain high corporate transparency
in order to strengthen the investors’ understanding and confidence in the
Group, thereby creating the maximum value for the Shareholders and
other stakeholders.

In 2022, the Company's investor relations department worked towards
the Group's business development, and maintained close communication
with the capital market and the public by holding investor presentations,
media conference, investor reverse roadshows, and publishing press
releases and articles on the Group's WeChat official account.

The investor relations department will continue to enhance the quality
of communication with investors and maintain corporate transparency
through various channels such as the publication of annual report
and interim report, press release, and announcement, as well as the
Company's website.

To ensure easy access to the Company's updated information, all of
our published information including announcements, interim and
annual reports and press releases, are posted on the Company's
website www.yinchenglife.hk in a timely manner. Interested parties can
also make enquiries by contacting the investor relations department
(email: ir@yincheng.hk).

SHARES PERFORMANCE IN 2022

As at 30 December 2022, the Company had a total of 267,152,000 Shares
and the closing price of the Shares was HK$2.85. Based on the closing
price as at 30 December 2022, the market capitalisation of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$761.4 million.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
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To the shareholders of Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

AN —E2T1E

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yincheng Life
Service CO., Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”)
set out on pages 92 to 196, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended 31 December 2022, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matters is provided in that context.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matter below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matters

MEEZEE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANEZNAEERREZER

Recoverability of trade receivables

E 5 kB AT el

At 31 December 2022, the Group had gross trade receivables
of RMB376,286,000, of which mainly arose from the
provision of property management services and value-
added services. Provision for impairment amounting to
RMB34,203,000 was made.

1220228128310 2 EBERSE ZRFIEBEAR
#376,286,0007T ° = B2RAYEEERB RIG ERE TR
BEMEL CSrHRAERETES ARE34,203,000

JT ©

Management assessed the expected credit losses on trade
receivables based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected credit loss rates. The Group uses judgements in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs for the
impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history,
ageing profile of the receivables, existing market conditions
as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of the
reporting period.

SEBREEMEN AR KRBRESHERMRRTE
B RUIRIENTRREERE INMFHZFRRAIEE
ARSI ERENESARER AEERBELERBEE
SEECER ~ FEUGRRIRBRESHE N ~ IR A R U KRR E AR
A B M 2 51 1F H 1 o

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements and the assessment
of the expected credit losses on trade receivables involved
significant estimates made by management.

PR B 5 EUGRIERI A Bl M5 A — BRI EIZ S
B ASHEMGEMBREAMS BEBERE LN HilE
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Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AR E SN R T BREAWEIK23 -

We obtained an understanding of how management
assessed the expected credit losses of trade receivables,
and evaluated the design effectiveness and tested the
operating effectiveness of key internal controls in relation
to impairment assessments;

HATREERBNANEEZBUERIATRMEERKE
VB A B R (E 55 B9 = Z A B FI B 5T A USRI
HIEIFRRL

We assessed the credit loss provision methodology
adopted by management, and the estimated credit
loss rates by considering historical cash collection
performance and movements of the ageing of trade
receivables, the market conditions and forward-looking
factors;

HABBERBFRSEERFAKEZ BUGRIRIRE
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BRERERGHEERER

We tested, on a sampling basis, the accuracy of
ageing analysis of trade receivables prepared by the
management, and checked the mathematical accuracy of
the calculation of the provision for loss allowance;

R EEE NS EEE R RN E 5 B IRIRRE D
eV MR E ST E B RERFHEHNEPERN ;

We assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements in connection with
the impairment of trade receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

HEEZER

FEEZEE @

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAINEZNAREMREZEER

Impairment of goodwill

BERE

The Group recorded goodwill of RMB27,411,000 as at 31
December 2022 arising from the acquisition of business.

EEEN2022512831H#REmE AR®E27,411,0007T
ThELERWEER-

In accordance with IAS 36, the Group is required to
perform an impairment test for goodwill at least annually
or whenever there is an indication that the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
may be impaired. The process of impairment testing for
goodwill is complex and involves significant judgements
and estimates in relation to the cash flow forecast,
growth rate and discount rate applied, which are based
on assumptions such as expected future market and
economic conditions.

REBEEREERE36 SEEARIBFNER
FRERENEEREELEBUZEME R ERMERET
BERENH BEREANNBREEE W RARER
TRERA ERILMIRREAZBAHAE Rt
HUPIIFBRAR R TS REE R 2 R AEE

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and

disclosures for goodwill impairment testing are set out in
notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BERENR ZERE A RESTURBERH NGRS
PSR MIEE3 R 160
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We obtained an understanding of how management
assessed the goodwill impairment, and evaluated
the design effectiveness and tested the operating
effectiveness of key internal controls in relation to
impairment assessments;

HATHREEBNMANEEHERE LHERRRET
& BB PO BRIZ B AR ST AR RS U S HLZ (R RLRL 5

We evaluated the assumptions used for impairment testing
for goodwill and tested the accuracy by taking into account
the relevant historical evidence supporting underlying
assumptions and comparing with orders on hand,
contracts signed, operating data and external market
research.

AT EAREEREAEANRR LEBFRXER
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We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtained an understanding of the valuation processes
and significant assumptions from the management of the
Group and the valuer; and

BB EREXGHEMNEN BEENRE
B wyBRAEEEEEMMEEMPNGHEBREREKX
(EE R

We also involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in reviewing the methodology and certain inputs
(such as the discount rate and growth rate) adopted on
the evaluation of goodwill impairment. We considered the
adequacy of disclosures for goodwill impairment testing in
the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
reportin this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
roEmcEMEE @R

Year ended 31 December 2022
HE2022F12831BIEFE

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5E AR®TT ARETT
REVENUE Wr3d 5 1,712,934 1,351,329
Cost of sales HEMA 6 (1,453,580) (1,132,083)
GROSS PROFIT EF 259,354 219,246
Otherincome and gains H A K W e 5 16,643 12,584
Selling and distribution expenses HE kDR (4,804) (5,810)
Administrative expenses TR (93,650) (73,391)
Loss on disposal of investment property HEREYENER 6 = (3,577)
Fair value gains on investment properties R E¥EN A ANBERT 14 206 1,026
Impairment losses on financial assets, net & B4 & AR (EREFEE 6 (17,214) (11,233)
Finance costs E RN 7 (7,279) (9,975)
Other expenses Hitpasz (1,843) (661)
Share of profits and losses of: FE(L R F) R B548
Associates Fd=l/N-=] 18 (1,257) (560)
Joint ventures aEhE 19 627 1,403
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRIRATEF 6 150,783 129,052
Income tax expense FrisfiBEsz 10 (38,180) (34,254)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEAi@F 112,603 94,798
Profit attributable to: THIRIBERELS
Owners of the parent ISYNSTEZZ= N 106,734 88,694
Non-controlling interests El22 5,869 6,104
112,603 94 798
EARNINGS PER SHAREATTRIBUTABLE ~ BAFEEEZFEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EiESRER
THE PARENT 12
Basic (RMB) BEX AR 0.40 0.33
Diluted (RMB) e ARB) 0.40 0.33

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
freEmREMEERER

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ABETF T

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hitt 2 EUR =
Other comprehensive income that will FEBE1E BRI T & B 42
not be reclassified to profit or loss in BB M2 E N m -
subsequent periods:
Income tax relating to disposal of BAEEMDENHESE
revaluated investment property that REYEARREMER
will not be reclassified = 314
Exchange differences: PER AR
Exchange differences on translation of MEBIIERERELE
foreign operations 1,540 (2,127)

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) REBABETEEMDEE

that will not be reclassified to profit or B EMEERE S (&

loss in subsequent periods 18) 28 1,540 (1,813)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE FRHMBERE (B8

INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 1,540 (1,813)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREHEKEEEE

FOR THE YEAR 114,143 92,985
Total comprehensive income TIATELEEREAERE

attributable to:

Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ= DN 108,274 86,881

Non-controlling interests JEIERR R 5,869 6,104

114,143 92,985

SRINAE SERIEAIRAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RERMBATR

31 December 2022
2022512831H

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®TT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB R 13 89,570 75,198
Investment properties KEME 14 50,794 32,971
Right-of-use assets EREESE 15 7,762 5,054
Goodwill kS 16 27,411 27,411
Intangible assets WmLEE 17 18,732 22,399
Investments in associates REERENKRE 18 5,649 3,855
Investments in joint ventures REEhENKE 19 3,584 4,273
Deferred tax assets FIETRIEE 2 20 14,720 10,072
Pledged deposits BEIRER 25 1,876 -
Total non-current assets IEMBEERE 220,098 181,233
CURRENT ASSETS MEBBEE
Inventories =FE 22 10,558 3,547
Trade receivables B 5 EINFIE 23 342,083 231,037
Due from related companies FEWLRR B A BIFIE 36 200,964 103,355
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE-RE R
receivables HuhE sz 24 100,473 76,714
Financial assets at fair value through BARBES ABEZNER
profit or loss ("FVTPL") EE (MRAnEEBE AR
i) 21 76,434 -
Pledged deposits BIEFER 25 2,101 1,344
Cash and cash equivalents RENMREEEY 25 292,058 538,131
Total current assets BB EAEE 1,024,671 954,128
CURRENT LIABILITIES ik =R
Trade payables B S EIRIE 26 75,404 44,514
Other payables, deposits received HAMFEA IR BliZE &
and accruals fEsTE 27 287,983 247,002
Contract liabilities aas 28 338,194 295,835
Due to related companies FESRARG A B RIE 36 13,146 17,121
Interest-bearing bank and HERITERREMMER
other borrowings 29 112,066 209,000
Lease liabilities HEa’d 15 7,822 6,984
Tax payable FE(HHRIE 20,682 16,565
Total current liabilities BB EAERE 855,297 837,021
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEFE 169,374 117,107
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERTERRBAR
LIABILITIES 389,472 298,340

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EEMBIRRR
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

PysE ARBFT ARET T

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREAE
Interest-bearing bank and other s EIRITIER R EMER

borrowings 29 6,480 -
Lease liabilities HEar 15 8,987 9,640
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 20 9,029 9,864
Due to a non-controlling shareholder of FE— M@ A Bl — % IEERR

a subsidiary A& R IE - 5,900
Total non-current liabilities JERENE B4R 24,496 25,404
NET ASSETS BERE 364,976 272,936
EQUITY -
Equity attributable to owners of BATA ABGERE

the parent
Share capital &N 30 2,387 2,387
Reserves (B 32 322,300 240,395

324,687 242,782
Non-controlling interests JEPERG R 40,289 30,154
TOTAL EQUITY g 364,976 272,936
Mr. Li Chunling Ms. Huang Xuemei
FEREE =EBRL
Director Director
BE BE

SRINAE SERIEAIRAR
WNEERS



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Ay g e

Year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A31HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATER AR
Investment Statutory Exchange Share Non-
Share Merger Share  revaluation surplus  fluctuation option Retained controlling Total
capital reserve*  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
k&  iERE  EREY
Bx  afiEk  ROEE  EfEE it fife* BRERE* RZE @ FRREE  EEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥TR ABKTR ABBTR ARETm ARMTR ARETR ARMTn ARETn ABKTR ABETR ABETR
(note 30) (note32) (note32) (note32) (note31)
(Ht£30) (Hft32) (Ht32) (H3t32) (Hz£31)
At 1 January 2022 R021818 2,387 (13,286) 14,969 4,034 28,746 (8,276) 331 150,891 262,782 30,154 212,936
Profitfor the year it 2 = = - - - - 106,734 106,734 5,869 112,603
Other comprehensive income for theyear A2 ENE
Foreign currency translation differences ~ SME#REZTR 2 - - - - 1,540 - - 1,540 - 1,540
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EAZENEEE o = = = = 1,540 - 106,734 108,274 5,869 114,143
Appropriations to statutory suplus reserve  BEE TR EE = - - - 10,967 - - (10,97) - - -
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 34) WA (a3 - - - - - - - - - 1,402 1,402
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ JEERRETE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - 2,864 2,864
Fquity-settled share-based payment ~ LUEREENRNA
BB = = = = = = 970 = 970 - 970
Final 2021 dividend declared BERIERERE - - (21,339) - - - - - (27,3%9) - (21,3%9)
As at 31 December 2022 2022128318 2,387 (13,286) 47,630 4,034 39,693 (6,736) 4,28 246,678 324,687 40,269 364,976
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB322,300,000  * ZERBREENGEYBRARANEGES
(2021: RMB240,395,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 1;,%1% ANE"322,300,0007T (20214 : AR

240,395,0007T) ©

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the parent

irEEmEER

BATER AR
[nvestment Statutory Exchange Share Non-
Share Merger Share  revaluation surplus fluctuation option Retained controlling Total
capital reserve®  premium* reserve® reserve® reserve* reserve® profits* Total interests equity
%8 fERS  ERER
Rk afigE*  RhEER  EfER R R BREEE RDE 4 FnRER  BofR
RMB000 RMBO00 RMB000 RMBI000 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMBO00 RMB000 RMBO00 RMB000 RMB000
NEETT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARSTR ARETR  ARETn  ARETn AREfr ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(note30) (note32) (note32) (note 32) (note 31)
(30 W30 W) (H5832) (is3431)
AT January 2021 REIR1E 2387 (13.286) 95,471 4976 17,25 (6,149) 34 72,435 113,427 2,144 195,571
Profitfor the year ERER - - - - - - - 88,694 88,694 104 94,798
Other comprehensive income forthe year ~ FAE 2 ENE
Foreign currency translation differences  SMEHREZHR - - - - - (2121) - - (2,121) - (2,121)
Income tax relating to disposal of revaluated HERENEIEEMBHR
investment property - - - 314 - - - 314 - 314
Total comprehensive income fortheyear ~ FA2HAREEE - - - 34 - (2121) - 88,694 86,881 8,104 92,985
Appropriations tostatutory surplus reserve  BEEA TR - - - - 11,694 - - (11,494) - - -
Disposal of investment property HERENE - - - (1,256) - - 1,256 - - -
Acquisiton of subsidiaries WERBAE (H534) - - - - - - - - 30 30
Capttal contribution from non-controlling  JEFERRETE
shareholders - - - - - - - - 1876 1876
Equity-settled share-based payment ~ MEGEEUNRAA
ERNAT - - - - - 2978 - 2976 - 2976
Final 2020 dividend declared BERERERE - - (20,502) - - - - (20502) - (20,502)
Asat 31 December 2021 R0NE128318 2387 (13,280) 74,989 4,034 28,746 (8.276) 331 150,891 242,182 30,154 272,936

SR SERRIS AR AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

l|\7r\ EE@/HLE%

Year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12831 HILEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5E ARETT AREFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBHFRRREME
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax FRAR AR A 150,783 129,052
Adjustments for: M THIEIBEH AR
Depreciation of items of property, ME -BEERREBEEITE
plant and equipment 6&13 23,059 16,965
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE 6&15 4,527 3,656
Amortisation of intangible assets W EESH 68&17 3,672 3,678
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of items of HEYE r‘%& SfHIEE
property, plant and equipment 18, e 5 152 (31)
Impairment losses on financial assets, %%ﬁﬁ}%fﬁi@@ﬂéﬁ@ﬁ
net 6 17,214 11,233
Finance costs MR A 7 7,279 9,975
Equity-settled share-based expense MUERGEEURN %
BRI 6 970 2,976
Loss on disposal of investment property HEREYERE 6 - 3,577
Investment income S E WA 5 (435) (295)
Share of profits and losses of associates FE(EHE R B R F] R 518 1,257 560
Share of profits and losses of joint FEME & E PR R 518
ventures (627) (1,403)
Expense on acquisition of subsidiaries WM E A B - 463
Interest income FBW A 5 (1,246) (1,029)
Fair value gains on FVTPL BERANEEFABGN
AnEENTD 5 (141) -
Fair value gains on investment SEMENRABAENG
properties 14 (206) (1,026)
206,258 178,351
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =8 0gm E (7,011) 1,356
Increase in pledged deposits EARIREFIE 0 (2,633) (1,344)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 EWERIEE N (120,889) (108,665)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERIE & R EM
other receivables FE s &5 AR 3% D (21,133) (10,633)
Increase in amounts due from FE U B Bk 75 =R IBIG N
related parties (57,828) (16,615)
Increase in trade payables B 5 &I RRIRIE D 27,623 20,001
Increase in other payables, deposits HMEMRIE - BEBEE R
received and accruals FEEHE FIE N 20,682 39,273
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 42,359 60,646
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to FE (T AR A B FRIE (Rl
related companies &0 (3,975) 1,047
Cash generated from operations REMGRE 83,453 163,417
Interest received BUFHE 1,246 1,029
Interest paid [SANEIES) (6,500) (9,486)
Tax paid BRIE (39,637) (34,602)
Net cash flows from operating activities & EHFARREREFEE 38,562 120,358

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

PysE ARBFT ARBTTT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFBMPRERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYE -BEKRREEE

plant and equipment 13 (49,050) (68,401)
Purchases of intangible assets BEETEE 17 (5) (100)
Purchase in investment properties BEREY= (5,764) (3,051)
Disposal of investment properties HEREYE - 4,954
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BERAABEFTABRN

SRS E (636,848) (78,500)

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~ HEZAREEF ABRD

at FVTPL THMBEENPIEHRIE 560,555 83,907
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS B A 34 5,941 (1,759)
Advances to related companies BNk E (370,000) (652,164)
Recovery of advances to related W [e][m B A BIRYEARR

companies 322,950 657,152
Investments in associates N =YNCIE =1 (1,637) (1,450)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - -BERRE

plant and equipment Fr§aIE 136 97
Net cash flows used in investing KREEHFARERE R

activities (173,722) (59,315)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZBAFRERE

ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid B E (14,483) (20,502)
Capital contribution by the non- SFIERKRERTE

controlling shareholders 2,864 1,876
Principle portion of lease payments MEMHRNEEE D 15 (7,829) (201)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank FHERITIER R EMERPIE

and other borrowings I8 130,000 209,000
Repayment of interest-bearing bank BEs RIRITEIUREMER

and other borrowings (221,465) (280,000)
Net cash flows used in financing MEEBFTARE RE R

activities (110,913) (89,827)

SRINAE SERIEAIRAR
2022FEERE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EERERER
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥FT ABET T
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH HeRBEESEEYRLBEE
EQUIVALENTS (246,073) (28,784)
Cash and cash equivalents at REVNRERIREEFEY
beginning of year 538,131 566,915
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REXRRERFEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 292,058 538,131
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEBMEGROWN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RE& MIRTTAEER 25 296,035 539,475
Less: Pledged deposits B BARIRER 3,977 1,344
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS EARBERRARKIRERE
STATED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FrEFRERIREEEY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 292,058 538,131

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is at Sertus
Chambers, Governors Square, Suite # 5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay
Avenue, P.0. Box 2547, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, the Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the subsidiaries now comprising the

RA TSR MY 5t

31 December 2022
20224128318

REKREERER

rABR—BERrHEESHEEFMAT
NERRAB - R ABINEMMEE
it Z&Sertus Chambers, Governors
Square, Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay
Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman
KY1-1104, the Cayman Islands ©

AT m—EREERAT - #HZE2022
F12ANBLFE  AEEBETHER

Group were involved in the provision of property management B SEREMEE R FIZER -
services and value-added services.
In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the EERR ARENERRE REEE
ultimate holding company of the Company is YINCHENG LIFE H“/\jﬁjfﬁiﬁﬁixﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂj PN
SERVICE CO., LTD., which is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. HEESEMBINRT -
Information about subsidiaries BRMBARNER
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: KA EEMBARFFNOT .
Nominal  Percentage of
value of equity interest
Place and date of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries establishment and place of operations share capital  the Company Principal activities
B A AvR: kY P VNSl 3t
MBAR BRI R 4t 2h HMRAEE REBALE TEEH
Directly held:
BEREE !
Yincheng Property Service British Virgin Islands/11 April 2019 USD50,000 100% Investment holding
Holding Limited** EB#MREE 2019548111 50,0005 7T REER
Indirectly held:
LiEESEZ oI
ERBERBERAT Hong Kong of China/30 April 2019 HKD1 100%  Investment holding
hEIEE, 2019548308 17T REER
BRI LSRR SHERAT People's Republic of China (“PRC")/ UsD1,000,000 100%  Investment holding
("B * Mainland China/14 May 2019 1,000,000% 7T REER
HEAREME (TPE)
FEIPH, 201958148
ERIRBERBERABY PRC/Mainland China/26 December 1997 RMB100,000,000 100% Property management
e Rl Pudt, 199712826 H UNSL MEERE
100,000,0007
BEREEEERBRBEAMRAZ*™  PRC/Mainland China/20 March 2013 RMB11,000,000 100% Housekeeping services
("BEEE) R E P, 2013435208 AR BHRE
11,000,0007¢
ERIRHESBRAR PRC/Mainland China/10 January 2012 RMB1,000,000 100%  Fitness services
s, R R, 20124612108 AR#1,000,0007T R
IR ERIE A IR A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PATSERARMTEE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Subsidiaries

MEAE

Place and date of incorporation/
establishment and place of operations
SEMARIL PRI BE R

SEC S E

REKREEER @)

BRI BATINEN (&

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital

sRAEE

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company
EATIELS
RERSLE

Principal activities

TEEH

Indirectly held: (continued)
MiERE (@
BRRERRBRAF
BRI EEEFRAG
BRAEREMZEIRERATY™
BREEEXRTIEBRAT
ek (&5 MERBBRAT
BREFEEERIREBRAF
BRERBERRBBRLAT*
BRECIEZMEERFRAT
AR ERE RSB R AT
TLERIRIAIR A ERB B IR AT
ROIN SRR E BRFB B IR AT+
BHTEFEREMEEEAR
BERFY
AR ZEMERBBRAE

ARERRRERRARAF

AR BRI ERT AR AT

Annual Report 2022

PRC/Mainland China/8 November 2000
B/ SPEPH, 2000511888

PRC/Mainland China/25 December 2012
B/ SPERH, 201246128258

PRC/Mainland China/15 August 2016
FREDL/HREIRH, 20168158

PRC/Mainland China/28 May 2018
REL/HRE R, 2018585528

PRC/Mainland China/23 May 2007
FREDHRE P, 2007858230

PRC/Mainland China/6 December 2019
hEL/SPERH, 2019512868

PRC/Mainland China/10 March 2020
B/ SPERH, 2020838108

PRC/Mainland China/15 January 2009
FREDL/HREI P, 20091 A15H

PRC/Mainland China/19 February 2020
FREDL/HREI P, 2020828198

PRC/Mainland China/11 January 2021
RELHRERH, 20211 A 118

PRC/Mainland China/ 27 January 2021
RELHRERH, 202181 A27H

PRC/Mainland China/ 10 April 1997
FE/RERH, 1997445108

PRC/Mainland China/3 September 2021
T HREIRH, 2021695831

PRC/Mainland China/ 28 December 2021
B/ TPERH, 20214128280

PRC/Mainland China/ 7 July 2020
R P, 2020 7R 7H

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.

RMB11,000,000
ABH£11,000,0007%

RMB500,000
AE#5500,0007T

RMB11,000,000
ABH£11,000,0007%

RMB8,000,000
AR 8,000,0007%

RMB3,229,600
AR 3,229,6007T

RMB10,000,000
AEH£10,000,0007%

RMB5,000,000
AR 5,000,0007T

RMB12,000,000
ABH£12,000,0007%

RMB5,000,000
AR 5,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
AEH£10,000,0007%

RMB500,000
AE5500,0007T

RMB500,000
AE5500,0007T

RMB5,000,000
AR 5,000,0007%

RMB10,500,000
ABH£10,500,0007%

RMB20,000,000
AE£20,000,0007%

100%

10%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

51%

51%

51%

51%

100%

100%

100%

60%

Elevator maintenance
BinMEE

Property management

MEERE

Landscaping services

AERERT

Engineering services

TH2RR%

Property management

MEERE

Engineering services

TH2RR%

Catering services

HEIRT

Property management

MEERE

Decoration services
RERE

Property management

MEERE

Property management

MEERE

Property management

MEERE

Property management

MEERE

Cleaning services
AERTS

Property management

MEERE



2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

* B A is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC

law.

*x These companies which registered under the PRC laws are wholly-owned

subsidiaries of the Company.

***  These companies which registered under the PRC laws are subsidiaries

of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and, accordingly, are
accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company's control over
them.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs")
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards ("IASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time

for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 16

Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendmentsto IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable
to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference to the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.
The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual
Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS
37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying IFRS
3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of
the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at
the acquisition date. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to business combinations that occurred on or
after 1 January 2022. As there were no contingent assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of
the amendments arising in the business combination that
occurred during the year, the amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items as determined by
IAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has applied
the amendments retrospectively to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after 1 January
2021. Since there was no sale of items produced prior to the
property, plant and equipment being available for use, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials)
and an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as
well as contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at 1 January 2022. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendment that is applicable to
the Group are as follows:

. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from
the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include
only those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other's behalf. The Group has applied the
amendment prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was
no modification or exchange of the Group's financial liabilities
during the year, the amendment did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

23 %gﬁfﬁ'rﬁiiiﬂmﬁ%‘ﬁ?}ﬁiﬁ%

AEBBRNZEMBRENEAT
5 2 AR (B 15 R £ B 5] R A AE 5T
BPR A F5 iR S 2R o

BRI SRR REZFHABPEL

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and its 251055 K B & B ENEZ
Associate or Joint Venture? & EH2ER 5528558 Bz EEHED
(CREY) AA?
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and B S 2R EEHONHEES
Leaseback? F165% (B4 (&
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’ BRI RIS AER] R SAY

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’*

Amendment to IFRS 17 Initial Application of IFRS 17
and IFRS 9 - Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)? ¢

Amendments to IAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the 2022
Amendments”)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

Amendments to IAS 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
4 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020,

IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

° An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of IFRS 17

6 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the
2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the |IASB
in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does
not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into
after the date of initial application of IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019).
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current, in particular the determination over whether an
entity has a right to defer settlement of the liabilities for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the
IASB issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date
affect the classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional disclosures by
an entity that classifies liabilities arising from loan arrangements
as non-current when it has a right to defer settlement of those
liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with future
covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the amendments and whether existing loan agreements
may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Amendments to |AS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted.
Since the guidance provided in the amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting
the accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amendments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of
that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,
such as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided
that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that
date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
Earlier application is permitted.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposalis recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level1 - basedon quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
foridentical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified
as held for sale), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or
cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss
in the period in which it arises (only if there are revalued assets in
the financial statements), unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has controlorjoint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, orany member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with IFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale".
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 4.75%

Office equipment, electronic and 9.5%-32.33%
other devices

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms and 10%-20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year/period the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

2.4 EXRGHEREME @

ME BB RBREURITE

¥ BB R ERIERIN
2R 2R 5T BE R AR el IR B 5 1R 51 AR i
ME--BERREREDEASFIFLE
NEASDBAFFHENEEAR
—EB 0B BT B WAR R B PR B 75
WEERESRAR E—THEERS
SRR FFHENFFRBEERREE
Hi-ME-BERREEERFEER
BEBREEERNRTEABHNEF
AR 7 e 3L B T 22 2E B9 {E fo B $ PR A AR
Zo

ME- -BREERBERERABFREL
B (Bl E RFEE)  —RIHE
EEHIB BB mE TR - AT S HESBR
BB T B E AR B R SR
REXRFABERAE FREE M
ME-BERREBENEZENDTEIHE
oA EEERZIHNERAERS
BEREREMNEREELARRT
%0

LB BEEYE B
Re 38 1678 B 9 f 51 71 5 A3 4 5O R 2L
R EEH G EE AL TIRAN LS
EEGT

BF 4.75%
WMNERE BEFES 9.5%%
@Rl 32.33%
HEYEEE THHEREA10%ZE
20%H BB EE

H—IBE -BERREEESHBOH
Bl e BEFHI A EE > Z 1B B B p AN
REEEENE M8 DR EE R
E-NFBEE DJEREHMNITES
EEDREEMBEE T LR KA
WEE) -

—EME -BERREER (BFEND
HERHERIEREL D) B &R b5t
HEASEERABELERREEN T
By i AR IERESE - N B ER LB EE
/B > BB SR BE T 5L 48 2 FE B2
Rl ESEIR R BBAEEN Y
EFSMEFERREENER



2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under "Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the fair
value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance
with the policy stated under "Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Customer relationships

Purchased customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 8 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:
Buildings 2 to 4 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with
the Group's policy for “investment properties”.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

(c)

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a maodification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of venues and equipment
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
and printers that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, at fair value through
profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for "Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
otherreceivables, and amounts due from related companies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equalto 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at the end of the reporting period. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instrumentsin an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the
case of financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables, deposits received and
accruals, amounts due to related companies, and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amountis reported in the statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories, comprise goods and consumables which are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the
first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks
which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
fora provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that itis no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of the reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains
a financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedientin [FRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a) Provision of property management services
Revenue from the provision of property management
services is recognised over the scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

(b) Provision of value-added services

The value-added services includes decoration and
construction service, fitness service, sales assistance
services, catering service and other value-added services.
Revenue from decoration and construction service, fitness
service, engineering service quality monitoring services,
landscaping services are recognised over the scheduled
period of time because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group. Revenue
from the catering service and other value-added services is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered and the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates.
Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Group operates share option schemes for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration in exchange for equity instruments ("equity-settled
transactions").

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note 31 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected
in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

Other employee benefits

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The non-PRC employees are covered by other defined contribution
pension plans sponsored by the respective local governments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company's functional currency because the Group's principal
operations are carried out in Mainland China. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic
life of the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair
value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all
the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are disclosed below:

3.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
consumer price index) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
property sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At the
end of the reporting period, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables is disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay", which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

3.

E ARG 5 FIEE G F @

st FEAREIR (@)
B BRIBENTRREEGREE

AEEERERERNEE S BT
ENBEREERRE BERHEBENAA
BUGEEXNZERZ R 2 EER
BRI E

BEEERVENAEENELRE
B o R E BRI B AR DR
ARt ERNNEREEBELER 5
90 > R TR AR T (BE B & BARE
) BRI AR —FRBIC M
FEENEMETENENREL N E
SEENRBERE - NREPREL
BRENRGTEN W MATREMER
sTRYEE

HBEERMEENR RALERR
K TAHER{E B k5 18 2 B A2 B 14 B9 51 (5 /B
BEARMES-BHEEHEENTRANRR
RIS HE AR R EE B - SEE
HBIE S B RS RS B B TR R B RO TR
RUBEARZERRKNEREN - ARA
AEREGRERIERREEGRE
(RYNECEE N VR

HE—fhsHE BENRAE

AERBLIESGEEHERNMESH
A= AL > HE R BERAR (Mg
EERFX) FEHERB - EEEM
) 2R 25 75 & [ 0 4R UGS R IR 1R 1 23 BY
FHECHEEEEERANEE MU
BLUERREBURMEARRES
FEZATBIFIR - I > B EMF KK
BRAEH TR FE T PORIR > S8 8
KA REF (AL BT IIRERZH
MBABMS) NEAHFKETRE
LU BR AR B B A5 R B R A B (Bl g > &
HEWIFUNB AT INEE Kt E
) > BIZR{ER AR (A5 - AEBER A
B AgE hsix) na) &
ST EREMAIF LAFHETER
BEMNMGE WRBASNBEILEES
R) ©



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Share-based compensation

The fair value of share options granted by the Group is estimated
using valuation techniques of the binomial model. The use
of valuation model requires management to make certain
assumptions with respect to selected model inputs. Management
estimates expected volatility based on the historical volatility of
the stock of comparable companies. Expiration date is the basis for
determining the expected life of an option. The risk-free interest
rate is based on treasury yield curve rates with a remaining term
which approximates to the expected life assumed at the date of
grant. Changes in these input variables would affect the amount of
expense associated with share-based compensation.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at
the end of the reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times when such
an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value-in-use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’'s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2022 was RMB27,411,000 (2021: RMB27,411,000).
Further details are given in note 16.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties carried at fair value were revalued at each
reporting date based on the appraised market value provided by
independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimation,
the Group considers information from current prices in an active
market for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.

The principal assumptions for the Group's estimation of the
fair value include those related to estimated rental values with
reference to the current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, appropriate capitalisation rates
and expected profit margin. The carrying amount of investment
properties at 31 December 2022 was RMB50,794,000 (2021:
RMB32,971,000). Further details, including the key assumptions
used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are
given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details
are included in note 20 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group's
business which includes property management service income
and value-added service income by project locations for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. As all the locations have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in the nature of property
management services, the nature of the aforementioned business
processes, the type or class of customer for the aforementioned
business and the methods used to distribute the property
management services and value-added services, all locations were
aggregated as one reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

No further geographical information is presented as the Group's
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its
operation in Mainland China and no non-current assets of the
Group are located outside Mainland China.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue
for the reporting period.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:
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2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETT ARETT
Revenue from contracts with customers REE LGN E 1,708,966 1,350,883
Revenue from other sources Tk B H 2RI W E
Gross rental income from investment REREMERKESHEN
property operating leases: KA EUA
Other lease payments, including HtBEE M
fixed payments BHEEE IR 3,968 446
1,712,934 1,351,329
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATSERRMISE
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5. Yz~ HMURA KU @)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFREHNKE
(a) Disaggregated revenue information: (a) WD EEER !
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBF T
Types of goods or services P e S AR S AR A
Property management services MEEER 1,368,638 1,082,123
Value-added services BERTS 340,328 268,760
Total revenue from contracts with REEREHNNINHIEEE
customers 1,708,966 1,350,883
Timing of revenue recognition U5 s B 520 B By
Recognised over time R—ER R FERR 1,608,447 1,287,775
Recognised at a point in time RE—Rr RS 100,519 63,108
Total revenue from contracts with REEFR NN HIEEE
customers 1,708,966 1,350,883
The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRETNARSHABAESE
recognised in the current reporting period that were included RE|ESHIOEIAGTHEEZ
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting mEE URMBEHRBETERZ
period and recognised from performance obligations BHNEEETE 2 NS .

satisfied in previous periods:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEB®ETFT

Revenue recognised that was RIS AGHNEEDN

included in contract liabilities at B

the beginning of the reporting

period:
Property management services MEEERS 280,708 211,504
Value-added services BERTS 13,628 21,616
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Weam ~ E UL A R Wz ()
REEREHNKE @
(b) EBHEE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5.

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Property management services

The Group recognise revenue in the amount that equals to the
right to invoice which corresponds directly with the value to
the customer of the Group's performance to date over time.
The Group bills the amount for services provided over time
and payment is due upon the issuance of a demand note by
the Group.

Value-added services

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.

EMAERERBRNEENENT
LI

HEEERE
AEBEEDH W@ EF N B RMIL
LZENEE O HAXERLZSH
EHERPBEAONBEEERHNE-
A E P E R B pL P IR (B AR 75
HAMREE - TR IR AR A5 E R
A BEER (o

1BERE

= (GRS AEERKREERE
BEEETEAMEBETEANSME
B I U E— R AR SR S vk
R —BFER ST o

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BFT AREBFT
Other income and gains H AU A R W &
Government grants B fEBh 13,609 11,094
Interest income ) EWA 1,246 1,029
Investment income SEIA 435 295
Gain on disposal of items of HEYE MERREEE NG
property, plant and equipment = 31
Fair value gains on financial assets ~ RAABEFABRZZSRE
at fair value through profit or loss EZ AnEERE 141 -
Others Hith 1,212 135
16,643 12,584
R ESERIE AR AR
0202FERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI EE
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRIEATGEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging: REBENGRRADREF T EABFRUTE
BBER .
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 AREETT ARETT
Cost of services provided B HARFEBI A 1,453,580 1,132,083
Impairment of financial assets, net EHBEERERE 17,214 11,233
Depreciation of items of property, ME - -BERZEBEEEINE
plant and equipment 13 23,059 16,965
Amortisation of intangible assets W B EEHH 17 3,672 3,678
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {EFAEEEITE 15 4,527 3,656
Lease payments notincluded inthe Rt AREEEFEDN
measurement of lease liabilities HEMR 15 6,396 4,077
Loss on disposal of investment HELEY IR
property = 3,577
Changes in fair value of investment R EYEMN AR BEES)
properties 14 206 1,026
Auditors' remuneration T2 BT BN 2,580 2,300
Employee benefit expense BEEANM: (BREEEK
(including directors' and chief RETBASHM) :
executive's remuneration):
Wages and salaries TEMFHE 457,056 352,280
Equity-settled share U REEURMD S
-based expense Az 970 2,976
Pension scheme contributions BETEIEIE
and social welfare HEEH 79,720 65,194
7. FINANCE COSTS 1. BAFAA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BAFS R A DT
2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 AREETT ARETIT
Interest on bank and other RITREAMERF S
borrowings 15 6,500 9,486
Interests on lease liabilities HEaBHE 779 489

7,279 9,975
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors'and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,
is as follows:
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EFRESTHAEFHM

Rz EHRAFALBRAIF383(1)
(@)~ (b)~ () R (DF AT (REES
MERIER) RO B2 IRENEEE
EFEh&eTHASHMOT

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFIT
Fees B 692 676
Other emoluments: HABNE -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R REY RN
in kind 1,245 1297
Performance-related bonuses* RIRE S TEAT 542 548
Equity-settled share-based expense MR EEURMNA
EmRRX 196 831
Pension scheme contributions and BEEETEIHEHRA
social welfare e R 169 167
2,844 3,519

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of
the Group.

During the year, certain directors were granted shares and share
options, in respect of their services to the Group under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value amount of such
shares and options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss during the current year is included in the above
directors’and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.

* ERBETHTERARERTEANR
TEANREAEEFRBENNE—]T
DELERE -

FR ETEFURENFTER 2R
MmiREA R BB ES B ERRMD
RERE BRE—SHBRNPHR
RMEE3T c ENAFEBm RPN
BRRMABRENRAABESRE
ALXFIRENEERERTHRAS
#rE P9 o
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8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

Certain of the directors received remuneration from the
subsidiaries now comprise the Group for their appointment as
directors of these subsidiaries. The remuneration of each of these
directors as recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiaries
is set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2022

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
inkind
e

2R

ik BET
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETR

8. EFRRSITHAESHM @

ATEEURSEZERRERESE
EMBARNEEEZZHBE AR
W B B o T SCELDIR I B A B S R
RFFCBRZFEFTE B

#Z2022512831HILEE

Performance- Equity-settled Pension
related  share-based scheme Total
bonuses expense contributions remuneration

DY o]

REHH URMHARRE BESHE
14T HIR% A st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR#ETRE ARETT ARBTR ARETR

Executive directors: RTES:

- Mr. Li Chunling —ZELEE = 824 282 101 84 1,291

- Ms. Huang Xuemei -&E5ELT - 421 260 95 85 861

Non-executive directors: FRTES!

- Mr. Ma Bao Hua —-BRERE 80 = = - - 80

- Mr. Zhu Li RNk 80 - - - - 80

- Mr. Huang Qing Ping —BETRE 80 - - - - 80

- Mr. Xie Chen Guang —#REE 80 = = = - 80

Independent directors: BUES:

- Mr. Mao Ning —FELE 80 - - - - 80

- Mr. Li You Gen —FRIERE 80 = = = = 80

- Mr. Chow Siu Hang —EkiERE 212 - - - - 212
692 1,25 542 196 169 2,844
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8.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

8. EFKkRSITHASHM @

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE2021F12831HLEFE
Salaries,
allowances  Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share-based scheme Total
Fees inkind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
EE MEmEs
K REEHE URONAER  BEEHE
idko BN e i) 7 et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETE
Executive directors: RWTES:
- Mr.Li Chunling —FEREE - 857 275 524 90 1,746
- Ms. Huang Xuemei -&BEELT - 440 273 307 77 1,097
Non-executive directors: FHiTES:
- Mr. Ma Bao Hua —BRELE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Zhu Li —KhrE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Huang Qing Ping —-HEFRE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Xie Chen Guang —BENEE 80 - - - - 80
Independent directors: BUEE:
- Mr. Mao Ning —FERE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Li You Gen —FRIRESE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Chow Siu Hang —BkiEkE 194 - - - _ 19
676 1,297 548 831 167 3,519

Mr. Li Chunling is the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company. There was no arrangement under which
a director or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

FEREER/ERTITEASFENR
TEF-RERN BMEEFHARSTH

AEREHXFAEREEAHMBOZHE
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. RAER=HMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two FRNELEaHNEECEMRES
directors (2021: two directors). Details of those directors' (20214 . MBEE) cEEFHMNT S
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the BN EXHE8 e WIERABTEEME
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2021: three) ETHABNESHEENHEGR =%
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief (20214 1 =) WEFERFBEFHBEWNT
executive of the Company are as follows:
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AR®ETF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind ¥ ~ 2B R EYEF] 1,359 1,093
Performance-related bonuses FRIRHMGTEAL 461 800
Equity-settled share-based expense Mgz B UMD A ERR
(52 178 631
Pension scheme contributions and BETEHARTETERN
social welfare 207 267
2,205 2,791

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

HNAF I BENFEERIFEE
THRAEBNRSHNESHEWNT

as follows:
Number of employees
BEAH

2021
20214
Nil to HK$500,000 £ %500,000 7T - -
HKS500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,0017875%1,000,00078 7T 1
HKS$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 ¢ % 1,500,000 7T 1 2
3 3

During the year, certain directors were granted shares and share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value amount of such
shares and options, which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss during the current year is included in the above
directors’ and chief executive's remuneration disclosures.
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10.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands,
the Group's subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. The Group's
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong was not liable for income tax
as it did not have any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25%
on the taxable profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries for the year.
Some subsidiaries are qualified as small low-profit enterprises and
thus the first RMB1,000,000 (2027: RMB1,000,000) of assessable
profits of these subsidiaries are taxed at 2.5% (2021: 5%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 5% (2021: 10%) for the
year.

10.
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2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Current tax: BPRAFRIE -

PRC corporate income tax RE (PRSI 43,663 38,661
Deferred tax IRIERRIE (5,483) (4,407)
Total tax charge for the year FRMRIEST H4EER 38,180 34,254

SR ERIE B IR AT
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax
expense at the effective income tax rate for each reporting yearis as

10. FRiFHE @

REREFE > xRF) REKER DM E
ANEEMAERZREZEERK
S HI BRI Al E A B A Y PR S AR B 57 22
RERMEREIAENMERNATH

follows: BEINF
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBETTT
Profit before tax PRIQ AR F] 150,783 129,052
At the statutory income tax rate (25%) ARSI ZE T (25%) 37,697 32,263
Lower tax rate for specific companies #h 75 HERA LS E A B 1A AR RY
enacted by local authorities BERE (1,497) (1,125)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of B EAERBNEARIEEL
previous periods A (209) (11)
Profits and losses attributable to joint BEPERBME N EHET
ventures and associates Yod 135 (95)
Expenses not deductible for tax EIEE 5 500 1,337
Deductible temporary differences not REEDH AN R =2
recognised 41 38
Withholding taxes on distributable profits ~ FEIME A B A 2IKaEH B
of the subsidiaries in the PRC AR = 676
Tax losses not recognised KEERINIBEIE 1,513 1,171
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAEREBRRIAENIRE
=4t 38,180 34,254
11. DIVIDENDS 11. B2
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBETTT
Proposed final - 2022: Nil BEAARE 2025 &
(2021: HKD126 cents) per (20214 - S10BREBR126
10 ordinary shares B - 27,431

The directors of the Company intend to not declare of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022.
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

12.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of

267,152,000 (2021: 267,152,000).

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2022
(2021:Nil) in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share option
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per

share amounts presented.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
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g?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁk%ﬁﬁ%
EREABAZZSEILERS AT
EERFAABGEEREN REER
INHETE80267,152,00008 (20214 :
267,152,00008) st & o

—

HRERITEBRESHRE27HNER
HEARBASEAE B ENE Rt
APMEEWE E20226128318 1EF
ErFE7NEREARNSIEELAE
(20214F : 4E) o

BREARBERMDENRNUTER
5t8

on:
2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARBFT
Earnings gl
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BARstEEREARNKN
holders of the parent used in the basic BRAEIEBETIFAA
earnings per share calculation FE(G 7 106,734 88,694
Number of shares
b eE|
2021
20214
Shares [o4%)
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt EESRERBANERN
shares in issue during the year used in BEITEBRMET I
the basic earnings per share calculation 267,152,000 267,152,000
R ESERIE AR AR

WNEERS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. MIE - -BEKRRE

Office
equipment,
electronic
and other Leasehold  Construction
Buildings devices improvements in progress
MAZRE
EFEHRR
£ Hiftvizag HELE fERIE st
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i AEETR ARETT AR¥TR ARETRT ARETR
31 December 2022 20228128318
At 1 January 2022: 12021818
Cost Mk 2,304 53,816 21,249 32,460 115,829
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHERAEE
impairment (315) (26,212) (14,104) - (40,631)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,989 21,604 13,145 32,460 75,198
At1January 2022, net of accumulated — 1A2022E181H » MR 5t
depreciation and impairment FTERAE 1,989 21,604 13,145 32,460 75,198
Additions TE - 30,295 17,828 927 49,050
Disposals HE = (288) = = (288)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBEAT 34 - 522 - - 522
Construction in process transfer to TEENEBRERET
buildings 33,387 = = (33,387) =
Transfer to investment properties BRERBYE 14 (11,853) - - - (11,853)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year 6 (1,000) (13,014) (9,045) - (23,059)
At31 December 2022, net of 20225128318 B Rt
accumulated depreciation and TERREE
impairment 2,53 45,119 21,928 - 89,570
At31 December 2022: 12022128318
Cost bz 23,838 82,376 45,07 - 151,291
Accurnulated depreciation and REHNERAE
impairment (1,315) (37,25) (23,149) 2 (61,721)
Net carrying amount REFE 22,523 45,119 21,928 - 89,570

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.

Annual Report 2022



13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

13. MIE -BERRE @

Office
equipment,
electronic
and other Leasehold  Construction
Buildings devices  improvements inprogress Total
HN N
BEFEHL
¥ e REXE TRIE s
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mirsk AREFT ARBTR ARETr ARETT AR®ETR
31 December 2021 20214128318
At 1 January 2021: R201E1R18
Cost M 2,304 31,020 15,035 - 18,359
Accumulated depreciation and REHTERAE
impairment (207) (15,605) (8,744) - (24,556)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,097 15,415 6,291 - 23,803
At1January 2021, netofaccumulated  F202151810 MR EstH7
depreciation and impairment ERAE 2,097 15,415 6,291 - 23,803
Additions E - B 12214 32460 68,401
Disposals HE - (66) - - (66)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEME AR - 25 - - 25
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year b (108) (11,497) (5,360) - (16,965)
At31 December 2021, net of #2021E12831 8 IR
accumulated depreciation and TERAE
impairment 1989 27 604 13145 32460 75,198
At31 December 2021: R021E128318
Cost A 2,304 53,816 21,249 32,460 115,829
Accumulated depreciation and FETERAE
impairment (315) (26,212) (14,104) - (40,631)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,989 21,604 13,145 32,460 75,198

At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's buildings with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB22,523,000 (2021:Nil) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.
And at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group's office equipment,
electronic and other devices with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB17,311,000 (2021:Nil) were pledged to secure
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

7R2022F12B31H  REEEBFEES
AER#22,523,0007T (20214 : &) &
TEFOEH ARAEEERN KR
TRIEIRMIER 202295128318 >
AEEREEFEAAR17,311,0007T
(205 ) WETHAERE B
FEBKEMESCET AXRERE
RIEMERIREER (F5E29) o

SRINAE SERIEAIRAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TS ERRMIEE
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. ILEMZE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBFT
Carrying amount at 1 January P1B1BZ EREE 32,97 29,919
Additions NE 5,764 10,557
Disposals HE = (8,531)
Transfer from owner-occupied properties BB X &R 11,853 -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment N EERENFE R S 206 1,026
Carrying amount at 31 December R12B31HZRE1E 50,794 32,971

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial
properties and residential properties in Mainland China, and
were revalued on 31 December 2022 based on valuations
performed by Jiangsu Jinhuitong Real Estate Asset Appraisal
Cost Consulting Co., Ltd, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at RMB50,794,000. The Group's chief financial officer and
property manager decide, after approval from the directors of the
Company, to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for
the external valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group's chief financial
officer and property manager have discussions with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation
is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 15 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the Group's investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB34,752,000 (2021:Nil) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 29).

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

AEENKEYEATREARMEEE
MERAETY) FEAERL > 1220225128
3NH RIS ERREMES ETG
SEZHBRAE BUEEGRMGLE
Bl B9 1E > 23 AR #550,794,0007T © &
AABDEFHER AEEEEMBE
REEEMRAEETRAELEERY
FEINEREERISNER (L (EED - IERAE R
EhHA#H - BE - BUMEREEHER
BEEKE - FETEFEMBRINMGEE
R AEBREEMBERYEEEMEA
fHEmMmEERRREELG R

REVMERBCEHEETE =7 H
HEREFIIN M BRERMW LS

120228128318 AEBRRAEES
AR ¥34,752,000 (20214 : ) IR E
MEEET > HEEBERN—RIRT
RERMIER (F5E29) o



14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

14.

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

REWE @
[REERER

TERAREAEBREYEQAEES
BE®R:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using

1?2022512A31B R AR BENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
3 EDN EX
AHZR FaHR
BARE BARE
E=H (FE=4%) Hst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBBTT AEBTR ARETRT ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement for BEMEANEBETE
Commercial properties [SEZYES = - 38,289 38,289
Residential properties FEYE = - 12,505 12,505
- - 50,794 50,794
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using
R2021FENANBRANBEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level3) Total
N BEX EDN
TEETS GIf OBk
RE BARE BAHE
(E—H (B E=WR) w5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement for KEMANEENE
Commercial properties EEME - - 20,466 20,466
Residential properties FEYE - - 12,505 12,505
- - 32,971 32,971

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2021: Nil).

RER F—REFE_HKBRBELR
BEENER  FESEAREHE=
B (20214F : %) o

SR SERRIS AR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATSERRMISE
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. BEYE @
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RABEESR @)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 748 ﬁ("&ﬁiﬁg BERRNE=HRNL R
3 of the fair value hierarchy: BESTEHER:
Commercial Residential
properties properties
EEME EEME
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 2021 F 1 A1 HVEREE 8,577 21,342
Additions NE 10,557 -
Disposals HeE - (8,531)
Fair value changes recognized in RIEmERN AN BEEE
profit or loss 1,332 (306)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 72021128318 &
and 1 January 2022 20221 A1 EHMERMEE 20,466 12,505
Transfer from an owner-occupied EXEBERYE
property 11,853 -
Additions NE 5,764 -
Fair value changes recognized in RETZEDNANEEES
profit or loss 206 -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 22022512831 HRVBREE 38,289 12,505

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TS ERRMIEE
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE @
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RRBEESR @)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key TXABEMEBBEERNGHERN
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: REZHABEHME !
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
BETR EXFARZBAR HERMETFIIH
2022 2021
2022F 20215
Commercial properties Income capitalisation method Estimated rental value RMB52~223 RMB48~108
. . (per sg,m. and per month) . _ . B
HEYE WAERIEF % HstAEE (BEARARER) ARHS2E23T ARIEL8E108T
Capitalisation rate 6%~7% 6.75%~7%
BAEX
Commercial properties Comparison method Eshmated unit pr|te RMB23,716 RMB23,600
R F‘ ? ~208 00 “208 000
HENE tavA fEquET_L BETHKARE)  ARKBIIE  ARK3600%E
208,1007T 208,0007T
Residential properties Income capitalisation method Estimated rental value RMB48 RMB48~60
. N (per sg.mand per month) _ B
TEME WABKIEFH % HEEE (BEARAREA) AR  ARIEBZEOT
Capitalisation rate 7% 7%
BAREE
Residential properties Comparison method Eshmated unit pr|ce RMB30,200 RMB30,094
RMB pers
e o BHRURE BESKARE)  ARMIZGE AR
The fair value of commercial properties and residential properties EEMERETEMELAABENEA
are determined by the income capitalisation method by taking BERMtbAZzEBEE EFERBEHEE
into account the net rental income of the properties derived from YK/ RAERETS LAIBRNY
the existing leases and/or achievable in the existing market with XHESWAEE TEEZEEENA
due allowance for the reversionary income potential of the leases, B mE ) RBEREHERE LUE
which have been then capitalised to determine the fair value at an ENERCEEERAEE- 3@5#“%
appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate, reference has TSP A HELERNEERS

also been made to the comparable sales transactions as available in
the relevant market.

SR SERRIS AR AR
WNEERS
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14.

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the
capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.

The fair value of the residential properties and commercial
properties are determined by using the comparison method, and
with reference to sales transactions as available in the relevant
market, comparable properties in close proximity have been
selected and adjustments have been made to account for the
difference in factors such as location and property size.

The higher the estimated unit price, the higher the fair value of the
investment properties is.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has leased certain of its office and fitness buildings in
its operations. The lease terms are normally two years to ten years.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing
the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

14.

15.

REWZE @

RRAEERER &

Lt AEENEEEM CRLD) KER
BREMENANEEREZEM GRL) -
B-BRMCRNEZEM GRLD) K E
RRENEN LA REEBREZ R (B
o) o

TEMERBEMENRIABETE
RLEBEEE  TESERMHHASF
RIHER S BEZEMAONTELRY
2 URAUERNFEFEREARNER
TEHEREE

At EUERES REMENAAE

Bl e
HE
FEBRERSEEA

AEECHEREETMAERRSE
FoHEM—REMFEETF - —RIE
N REBNEAERSERLSNEE
REHEBERE-

() FEREEE

RER AEBEREZREE
HEEREBEHINT :

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R1B1HZEREE 5,054 1,459
Additions RE 7,235 7,251
Depreciation charge TEER (4,527) (3,656)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12B31HZREE 7,762 5,054

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

15. #HE @&
TEBESEEA @
(b) HE&R
RER HEERREHREE

during the year are as follows: wmr
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBEFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January PB1BZEREE 16,624 1,507
New leases HRE 7,235 14,829
Accretion of interest recognised FEREDF] BIE N
during the year 779 489
Payments ZAIRIA (7,829) (201)
Carrying amount at 31 December P12B31HZREE 16,809 16,624
Analysed into: AN
Current portion BPHEAER 7,822 6,984
Non-current portion JERNERER > 8,987 9,640

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 39
to the financial statements.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all eligible
rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain
plant and equipment during the year.

The Group leases certain properties from third party on
fixed periods covering seven years, of which held for rental
yields and not occupied by the Group are recognised as
investment properties (note 14). Lease liabilities represent
the corresponding liabilities of the leased assets.

HE&BREIRA DR M ER
RIFEIOWEE ©

FEERFANEHHBEARE
PREGERE SR RERERE
BHFEEETRE K&

FEEZCENEEHRRAE =
BEEETYWE > HPRFAE
BIF A& B £ B9 2 W o R e
BaREYE (MF14) - HES
BIECHEEENBRAR-

SR ERIE B IR AT
WNEERS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

15. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

15. #HE @&

FEBESEEA @

(c) MIBERIBmFETRITRIERT N
T

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETTT

Interests on lease liabilities HEaENE 779 489
Depreciation charge of right-of-use AR EEITERS

assets 4,527 3,656
Expense relating to short-term B E RIREBEEEAR

leases and low-value assets R Gr AHERA)

(included in cost of sales) 6,396 4,077
Total amount recognised PIB SRR IR AR EE

in profit or loss 11,702 8,222

The Group as a lessor FEBEEAHEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of
commercial properties and residential properties in China under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay guarantee deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was RMB3,968,000 (2021: RMB446,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

BRIEKESHEZY ~EENRFEBE
HEEMERTEYEARNEEY =
(Fyst14) - FHERMBEBTERERE
THREEZE TREBEEFNTSERLE
HAEEES AEBPEREDRNAE
A& AR 1E3,968,00077 (20214 @ A
R1&446,0007T) > Bt AMBHRE
Mg sES o

1220224128318 » RIFLAFA S A BB
HEEAE > AERARRIABEUCK
IIRBENRNT -

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ABRETF T

Within one year R1FER 4,324 2,828
After one year but within two years RIEBRMERAN 3,965 2,738
After two years but within three years RRERKIER 3,322 2,396
After three years but within four years 3FBRRAFER 2,955 2,300
After four years but within five years IRAFBRSFER 2,994 2,103
After five years R5%F% 5,471 3,855

23,031 16,220

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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16.

GOODWILL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

16. HE

RMB'000
ARBTT

At 1 January 2021: 20211818 ¢

Cost D% 26,179

Accumulated impairment REHRE -

Net carrying amount REFE 26,179
Costat 1 January 2021, net of 1220211 A1 A > fNBRREHEE

accumulated impairment 26,179
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—EREAE 1,232
At 31 December 2021 12021%F12H31H 27,411
At 31 December 2021: 72021128318 -

Cost (D% 27,411

Accumulated impairment REtBE -

Net carrying amount REDFE 27,411
Costat 1 January 2022, net of 1220221 A1 BRI A -

accumulated impairment NBRFENRFTRIE 27,411
Impairment during the year FERRE -
Cost and net carrying amount 122022812 B3 B AS K AR TR E

at 31 December 2022 27,411
At 31 December 2022 7202212 H31H

Cost % 27,411

Accumulated impairment REtBE -

Net carrying amount REDFE 27,41

R ESERIE AR AR
02FERE
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BAESERR M

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following two cash-generating units ("CGUs") for the
impairment testing. The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have
been determined based on a value-in-used calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period prepared by management.

Principal business Goodwill

G

2022
20225
MRECER Property management
_ R MEEE 26,179
&L MM Property management
L EZEs: 1,232
2021
20214F
mRECER Property management
L R LU PL 26,179
8L MM Property management
MEEE 1,232

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of
the above-mentioned CGUs. The following describes each key
assumption on which management had based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate - The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Annual revenue growth rate - The predicted revenue growth rate of
the CGUs for the five years subsequent to the date of assessment is
one of the assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations.

Terminal growth rate - The terminal growth rate was estimated to
be 2.5% which has taken into consideration the prevailing industry
practice.

The management of the Group believes that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions of the value-in-use
calculation would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the
recoverable amount of the CGUs.

As at 31 December 2022, the management of the Group determined
that no impairment of goodwill should be recognised above CGUs.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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16.

growth rate

FHRRE

HE @
2 rRER =
EBEZCHESHEEMER
AMEDEENTWERSEEE B
(REELEN) ZERTELE
Ry T UR ] 28 TH AR 15 B 32 JE 4R S AY5
FHMBRE VAR AERANE
REEStEEE-

Annual
revenue Discount

rate

Terminal
growth rate

oy
1 R®

W zk

IR S

5~10% 2.5% 18.90%
2~15% 2.5% 13.00%
5~10% 2.5% 17.00%
2~15% 2.5% 13.00%

AR LR EEBUNEREER
BERRR  TXHAEEERETE
ZRERANGMRERNIBESRERAFR
RENZRTERR !

AEIRR—Fr AR IR R B ERIRAIR R B
fz Bk R AR BB i B A DO 4 E FRL R o

i35 8 18 R — 0 3T I ER R 5 B0 IR
SELEMEANK R EERANEE
FEEFRANERZ—.

KB RR K RIBITITEER X
BIERE(E5H22.5%

SEEERERA EABEHENE
ERENCASBITESHETYE
AR B BB & 4 B (160 A IR E
8o

202212831 H  ZEEEEEBT A
FIReEEBENBERIEERE-



17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

17. EREE

Customer

Software  relationships Total

LS ERR% st

RMB'000
ARETR

RMB'000
ARETT

Notes RMB'000
M 5E ARETR

31 December 2022 2022%12H31H
Costat 1January 2022, netof 722022818 1HBIAL A

accumulated amortisation fNBR R stk 116 22,283 22,399
Additions hE 5 = 5
Amortisation provided FRBHEE

during the year 6 (59) (3,613) (3,672)
At 31 December 2022 512022612 831H 62 18,670 18,732
At31 December 2022: 720225128318 ©

Cost M 369 28,908 29,277

Accumulated amortisation Rt (307) (10,238) (10,545)

Net carrying amount REFE 62 18,670 18,732
31 December 2021 2021%£12A31H
At 1 January 2021: 20211818 ¢

Cost mA 264 28,908 29,172

Accumulated amortisation RETEH (184) (3,011) (3,195)

Net carrying amount REVFE 80 25,897 25,977
Costat 1January 2021, netof  $320214181 BRI A

accumulated amortisation 0Bk R 555 80 25,897 25,977
Additions hE 100 - 100
Amortisation provided FREHEE

during the year b (64) (3,614) (3,678)
At 31 December 2021 720215128318 116 22,283 22,399
At 31 December 2021 and FR2021E128318 &

at 1 January 2022: R202248F1 818 -

Cost DN 364 28,908 29,272

Accumulated amortisation RETHEE (248) (6,625) (6,873)

Net carrying amount RENFE 116 22,283 22,399

SRR ERIEBIRAR
02FERE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TS ERRMIEE
18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtZEATNKRE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBETTT
Share of net assets EIEEERE 5,649 3,855
The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with associates FEBHEBMEADNEZEBFIER
are disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements. FE(I RRIBAEER I IS B IR R M 5E 3648 B8 ©
(a) Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows: (a) EBEBZEATIAFBWNT -
Percentage of
ownership
Registered interest
Place and year of capital attributable
registration RMB'000 tothe Group Principal activities
. EMER FEEMEG
o iRt 2 R S 4 ARBT T BEEEZASLL FEXEH
IBRERERBERAT Nanjing, PRC 10,000 34%  Security services
2019
HERBR REIRES
20195
HRIRER KR EEERAE Nanjing, PRC 5,000 40%  Life services
2021
HEER LER
20214
EREENERBEREERE Nanjing, PRC 500 30%  Property services
2021
HERR e T
20215
ARIRRIL AMERBERAE Nanjing, PRC 2,000 35%  Property services
2021
HEER RS
20214
RNEEEERBERAT Taizhou, PRC 10,200 49%  Property services
2021
lEESI e T
20214
BRRIRI CLER) £IERBERAR Wuxi, PRC 10,000 49%  Property services
2022
ks RS
20224
M RRIE T ERBER AT Nanjing, PRC 500 51%  Property services
2010
FERR e T
20104
AREIEREYEEIRERAR Nanjing, PRC 5,000 40%  Property services
2022
HERER RS
20226
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18.

19.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(a) Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows:
(continued)

The Group's shareholdings in the associates comprise equity
shares held through two wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company.
(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's associates that are not
individually material:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR M

18. MREtEATIMNIEE
(a) EBEBEATIAIFBWNT -
(&)
FEERBEATNRECES
BHEAATIREEERB AT
B REERGo

(b) TRMRPAKEEILIFEREE
Z;E’JH%%%’&E B BRI

=z

\|
.

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEBETFT
Share of the associates' loss FERELBE AT R
for the year (1,257) (560)
Share of the associates' total FEIEHE AR 2 EEIBAE%E
comprehensive loss (1,257) (560)
Aggregate carrying amount of KEBRPRBERABN
the Group's investments in the KEREEMREE
associates 5,649 3,855
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELENKRE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEEFT
Share of net assets PMEEEFE 3,584 4,273

The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with joint
ventures are disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

FEERGELENE ZRBRIER
FE RIS BRI I S ¥R AR Y 53 63 88 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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19. REETENELE @
(a) mEBEMNSELEFBWNT

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
(a) Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as

164

follows:

Name of company

RE%TE

Place and year of

registration
sE ALY
MEERE B

Registered
capital
RMB'000

G

gz
ARBFR

Percentage of
ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group

A EBR(GR
BEEEDENL

Principal
activities

TEEH

BN SRR ERFE AR AR Suzhou, PRC 12,880 49%  Property services
2020
FR B & N YRR
\ 20205
mERRI IR X ERBE R AT Nanjing, PRC 5,000 51%  Property services
2020
HERER YRR
20204
ERIEMIEREERBERAE Nanjing, PRC 10,000 30%  Life services
2021
HERER YRR
20214
EREEBEERBRAR Nanjing, PRC 2,000 40%  Life services
2022
HERER LIERRTS
20224
The Group's shareholdings in all the joint ventures comprise $%§ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ?*ﬁﬁé¥?’\] R E:F%
equity shares held through two wholly-owned subsidiary of T_Eiéi@ & zfﬁ E ﬁ;ﬁﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ% A
e Company, A 2 MR o
. - LEHRRBIURERSEREA
Above companies are accounted for as joint ventures of the B DR AEEREE S E
Group because neither the Group nor the counterparty has BE2EZENSNESENA &
the right to variable returns from its involvement with these SHEHTEO R o WE AT MG
companies. Both the shareholders do not have the ability to BEHEEHBBEBERZEATHN
affect the returns through their power over these companies. HEF R EBIR -

(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial (b) %E%@%%%%%%@EU
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not il s LA JEm 15 H
individually material: R

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Share of the joint ventures' profits DMEEERENFERN G
for the year 627 1,403
Share of the joint ventures' total MEBELELEWNmABEE
comprehensive income 627 1,403
Aggregate carrying amount of AERREGEREN
the Group's investments in KEZEREMRE
the joint ventures 3,584 4,273

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2022



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATSERR M
20. DEFERRED TAX 20. IRIERIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FRNIRIERBEERERESHUNT !
are as follows:
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEEE

Unpaid Unpaid
Lease  Impairment of employee
liabilities financial assets benefits Total

THEE

FHEEAMR AE  REHRERH it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR  ARETR ARBTT  ARETR

At 1 January 2021 #2011 81H - 4,107 1,900 6,007
Deferred tax credited to the statement of profit R EE R T ARGEIERIE (i5E10)

or loss during the year (note 10) 1,008 2,997 677 4,682
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 720215128318 K202251 B1H 1,008 7,104 2,577 10,689
Deferred tax credited/ (charged) to the FRFBRERA/ (05 FEERE

statement of profit or loss during the year (FfzE10)

(note 10) (670) 3916 1,039 4,285
At31 December 2022 720224128318 338 11,020 3,616 14,974
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIAERE

Fair value Fair value

change of adjustments

Revaluation investment arising from
of investment Withholding properties acquisition Right of
properties taxes and “FVTPL" a subsidiary use assets

REENER

RARMEE  KEREAF

AN PRy
BERENE B AAEEEH AARERR RRAkEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AEBTT ARBTT ARBTT

At 1 January 2021 PFONE1R1R 1,659 2,067 247 6,547 - 10,520
Deferred tax charged/ ERPERTNR/ GIA) B

(credited) to profit or loss FIERE

during the year - 676 (114) (904) 617 275
Deferred tax credited to other SAEMREREN

comprehensive income BRI (314) - - - - (314)
At31 